%) SR 0
S\ )
® \\‘%

i %>

i SR
s R oo J
8, SSTAN

LANCASTER

i

Pt

CITY COUNCIL

Promoting City, Coast & Countryside

Committee:  CABINET

Date: TUESDAY, 2 DECEMBER 2014
Venue: MORECAMBE TOWN HALL
Time: 10.00 A.M.

AGENDA

1. Apologies
2. Minutes

To receive as a correct record the minutes of Cabinet held on Tuesday, 4 November 2014
(previously circulated).

3. Items of Urgent Business Authorised by the Leader

To consider any such items authorised by the Leader and to consider where in the
agenda the item(s) are to be considered.

4, Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required
to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been declared in
the Council’'s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 and in the
interests of clarity and transparency, Members should declare any disclosable pecuniary
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Members are required to
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.

5. Public Speaking

To consider any such requests received in accordance with the approved procedure.

Reports from Overview and Scrutiny

None



10.

11.

12.

Reports

Charter Market Review (Pages 1 - 27)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Barry)

Report of Chief Officer (Environment)

Storey - Tasting Garden (Pages 28 - 42)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Hanson)

(Report of Chief Officer (Environment)

Smokefree Play Areas - Introduction of a Voluntary Code (Pages 43 - 46)

(Cabinet Members with Special Responsibility Councillors Leytham and Smith)
Report of Chief Officer (Health & Housing)

Corporate Performance Monitoring 2014/15 (Pages 47 - 75)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Bryning)

Report of Chief Officer (Resources)

Budget and Policy Framework Update 2015/16 (Pages 76 - 91)

(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Bryning)

Report of Chief Officer (Resources)

Exclusion of the Press and Public

This is to give further notice in accordance with Part 2, paragraph 5 (4) and 5 (5) of the
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)
(England) Regulations 2012 of the intention to take the following item(s) in private.

Cabinet is recommended to pass the following recommendation in relation to the following
item(s):-

“That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) of business, on the
grounds that they could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information as defined
in paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of that Act.”

Members are reminded that, whilst the following item(s) have been marked as exempt, it
is for Cabinet itself to decide whether or not to consider each of them in private or in
public. In making the decision, Members should consider the relevant paragraph of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, and also whether the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information. In
considering their discretion Members should also be mindful of the advice of Council
Officers.

Sites off Bailrigg Lane, Scotforth, Lancaster (Pages 92 - 98)



(Cabinet Member with Special Responsibility Councillor Hamilton-Cox)

Joint Report of Chief Officer (Regeneration and Planning) and Chief Officer (Resources)

ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS

(i) Membership
Councillors Eileen Blamire (Chairman), Janice Hanson (Vice-Chairman), Jon Barry,
Abbott Bryning, Tim Hamilton-Cox, Karen Leytham, Ron Sands and David Smith

(i) Queries regarding this Agenda

Please contact Liz Bateson, Democratic Services - telephone (01524) 582047 or email
ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk.

(iii) Apologies

Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk.

MARK CULLINAN,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
TOWN HALL,
DALTON SQUARE,
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ

Published on Thursday 20" November, 2014.



Agenda ltem 6 Page 1

CABINET

Charter Market Layout
2"! December 2014

Report of Chief Officer (Environment)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

Further to Cabinet’s previous request this report provides options for the layout of the market
once the Square Routes work has been completed

Non-Key Decision EI Referral from Officer ‘ZI
Date of notice of forthcoming NA

key decision

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS OF CHIEF OFFICER (Environment)

(1) Cabinet are requested to consider whether a radical overhaul of the
Charter Market is needed. If so consideration should be given to
setting up a working group to develop a strategy and plan for future
provision of the market. If not:

(2) Cabinet are requested to consider which layout (A or B as shown in
Appendix B) is preferred for the market. The chosen layout will be
implemented from January 2015. Officers will allocate pitches to
stallholders and continue to monitor and adjust as necessary to
ensure the layout works effectively

(3) Cabinet is requested to reaffirm that traders are expected to follow
market rules on matters such as appearance of stalls, tidiness of stalls,
leaving the pitch clean and tidy, not encroaching beyond the pitch,
being courteous to other city centre businesses etc. Furthermore
officers are instructed to ensure that market rules are followed at all
times and to take immediate action against traders who don’t wish to
comply with the market rules.

(4) Cabinet are requested to consider whether they think it is appropriate
to increase the cost of pitches on Market St and Cheapside from April
1%t 2015 to £1.80 sg/m and £20.00 minimum charge, with existing
traders wishing to trade from Church St / New St being charged at
£1.35sg/m and £15.00 minimum charge, and new traders requesting a
pitch on Church St / New St being given an initial 6 month period
where no fees will be charged.



(5)

1.0
1.1

Page 2

Cabinet are requested to delegate the implementation following an
Officer review of City Centre concessions, street pitches etc to the
Chief Officer (Environment) in consultation with the Cabinet Members
responsible for Markets and Regeneration.

Introduction
STRATEGIC CONTEXT- Square Routes

Cabinet (4™ Oct 2011) considered a report with regard to Square Routes.
The report considered the scheme that is currently underway.

Cabinet agreed that the rationale to agree to the works in Market Square was-

By a second phase of works to Market Square the council can look to
complete a transformation for the public benefit, providing:

O An environment fitting to the Square’s role as the civic centre of the
city;

O A place more active, pleasant and safe to spend time in;

O An improved layout for the outdoor market;

O An environment fitting and complementary to the Old Town Hall and
the council’s ambitions for use of this building;

O An improved setting and staging for events and performance;

This should add to the attraction of the city to the benefit of business
trading, much needed in difficult economic conditions.

Cabinet then agreed the following-

(1) That Cabinet notes the progress in delivering the first
phases of improvements as part of Lancaster Square Routes including
in Market Square.

(2) That Cabinet notes that officers will in due course report
to the appropriate portfolio holders on the future layout of the outdoor
market, potentials for a street café(s) in Market Square and how the
existing Traffic Regulation Order for the city centre pedestrian zone
might best be revised and subsequently enforced.

(3) That Cabinet notes that officers will report to the portfolio
holder on any need or potential to support the county council in works to
remedy the surface condition of Penny Street and Horseshoe Corner in
a way that is consistent with the Lancaster square routes design visions
and that the anticipated balance of funds in the city centre investment
after the first phase of works in Market Square fund for Lancaster
Square Routes be reserved for this purpose pending further reporting.

(4) That in preparing its proposals for the 2012/13 General
Fund Capital Programme as part of the budget process, Cabinet
considers including an additional £300K contribution to the city centre
investment fund for Lancaster Square Routes in order to provide for a
second phase of works in Market Square.



1.2

Page 3

The above underpins that fact that delivery of the Square Routes project is a
key strategic objective the Council. As such it contributes to a number of
corporate priorities as set out in the Council’'s Corporate Plan.

STRATEGIC CONTEXT — Council Ethos

Part of the Council’s ethos as set out in the corporate plan is that of
stewardship. This involves ensuring the social, economic and environmental
wellbeing of the local area. In practice active stewardship involves a number
of things including taking the key role in engaging, co-ordinating and
mobilising other public, private and voluntary bodies in delivering the council’s
strategic objectives for the place. How stewardship is exercised is a local
issue and needs to be determined by the Council in partnership with local
citizens.

As will be seen in this report the decision that Cabinet are being asked to
make is one that very much calls for the Council to act in its role as steward.

The Square Routes project provides a good demonstration of the ability of the
Council to deliver key strategic objectives through active stewardship. The
detail of the works was informed by local citizens through an extensive
consultation exercise. The City Council then took a key role in engaging with
other stakeholders (eg County Council, Police, Chamber / BID, market
traders, contractors) to deliver the project.

As set out earlier in delivering the key strategic objective of improving our
City’s public realm Cabinet recognised at the time there was a need to
reassess a number of other city centre related activities. These include-

e Management of movement (pedestrian, vehicles, cycles).
e Ongoing maintenance of the city centre
¢ Maintaining the safety of the city centre

e Use of public space in the city centre (entertainment, market, cafes
etc)

As the City Council does not have direct responsibility for all of the above in
order to obtain the best results for our citizens it is essential that the City
Council continues to act in its stewardship role.

This report focusses on one apparently very narrow aspect of the City Centre.
This being the twice weekly Charter Market and how it should be laid out in
the future.

What will become abundantly clear though is that although the focus of the
report is narrow the subsequent decision will have a significant impact on the
whole range of activities that need to be managed within the City centre. In
other words whatever decision is arrived at there will be consequent impacts.

The Council has clearly demonstrated to date though in delivering the key



2.0
2.1

2.2

Page 4

strategic objective of the Square Routes project that as an active steward it is
very well aware of the interrelationships that exist within the city centre. This
in turn mitigates the risk of decisions being made that have unintended
consequences.

The Council is also very well aware of the need to respond in its own way to
problems that arise and to the views of local people.

As such prior to making any decision on the future layout of the Charter
Market the Council has undertaken an extensive consultation exercise. The
consultation exercise has provoked much healthy debate between a range of
stakeholders (market traders, shop based businesses, shoppers, Chamber
and members of the business improvement district). The views put forward to
the consultation have been very much appreciated and have helped provide
the information needed to write this report.

As can be seen in the summary of responses from the consultation (Appendix
C) there have been a very wide range of responses. The fact that so many
have taken the time to put forward their views to the Council indicates how
strongly people feel about the need to get this part of the City Centre right. To
suggest, as some seem to have, that this is just an issue of shop based
businesses trying to reduce competition or a straightforward big business
versus small business battle would be to completely oversimplify the issue.
What is absolutely clear from the consultation is that everyone who has
responded has done so because they genuinely feel that their views
represent the best way forward for either their business (shop or market
based), the city centre as a whole or both. A shop based business has as
much right to try and preserve its business as does a market based one. A
consumer has the right to choose whether they prefer to buy a product from a
shop or a market stall. By the same token the Council as steward, when it is
convinced it understands the issue and the views of its citizens, has the right
to decide how the market is delivered.

This wide spectrum of views presented does mean however that in making
any decision there will be some stakeholders who will maintain that the
Council has reached the wrong decision. It is also possible that in reading the
summary of responses some will seize on specific comments (Appendix C).
As explained above the responses are provided to help provide context and
this inform Cabinet’s decision. To take them as isolated sound bites would, as
has been earlier stated, be to miss the point.

Regardless of this it is for the Council as steward of the City centre to take a
decision on this very local issue.

Proposal Details

The consultation document on a draft layout for the Charter Market was sent
out in Aug 2014 (see appendix A)

Based on feedback from this a further consultation exercise was undertaken
in October 2014 (see appendix B)



2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Page 5

A summary of the responses to this consultation exercise are attached (see
appendix C)

A layout of the market pre Square Routes is provided (see appendix D)

Cabinet should note the operating context for the proposals that Cabinet are
asked to consider-

e The ancient Charter covers the City for Wednesday and Saturday
only.

e The soon to be introduced Experimental Traffic Order (ETRO) will
allow some disabled parking in bays on New St and Church St. Work
is taking place to establish how technically this would work were the
Charter Market ever to expand to occupy all the area it could.

e A minimum width of 3.1m needs to be kept free in all streets at all
times to allow access for emergency vehicles.

e Location of pitches must not block pedestrian access / egress to any
premises (includes fire exits, service entrances etc).

e Pitches should be kept 1.2 m away from the building line to allow
access to shops and maintain some visibility of shop frontages.

e Pitches should as far a possible not be located so as to completely
block visibility to shop frontages.

e Due to relocation of street furniture etc a 6 pitches have already been
removed from Market St/ Cheapside.

o The Square Routes works have vastly improved the appearance of the
city centre and also the potential of the city centre. It is important that
the appearance is maintained and the potential is realised.

QUESTION A - Is a more radical overhaul of the Charter Market required
than what officers have consulted on?

Some have suggested that the Council lacks a well thought out business plan
and strategy for the market, and that without one the full potential of the city
centre will not be realised and furthermore decisions cannot really be taken
on the layout of the market. In putting forward this view it is suggested that a
key point to consider is whether the newly refurbished Market Square should
be left solely for entertainment / events and for people to congregate.

The officer view of this is that actually the City Council is very clear in its view
of the market. These have been articulated via the considerations made in
arriving at the Square Routes project and the subsequent consultations and
are underpinned by the Council’'s ethos and particularly the need for the
Council to act as a steward. The Council’s view of the market can be summed
up as-

The market is an attraction that makes the city centre an attractive and vibrant
place and should be managed to take account of other users and to make
sure it achieves high standards.



Page 6

The question is then to what extent does the Council feel it needs to further
‘plan’ the market to achieve the above?

The Council could take the view that to achieve the above it wants to
completely overhaul the market. Some Councils have adopted a very
interventionist route to market provision. To the extreme where the market is
effectively an outdoor shopping mall with homogenised stalls selling
prescribed products that complement what the shop based businesses offer.
Other Councils have followed a less extreme route but have in place a very
prescribed plan for their markets nonetheless. Such plans are still very
interventionist in that they will specify which goods can be sold and from
which pitches, where the goods should come from, the Council may also
supply the stalls.

It would also be perfectly valid for the Council to take the view, as it has to
date, that, as it is, the market supports the Council’s strategic objectives. The
current model of market provision is financially self —sufficient, creating no
burden for the Council tax- payer and making a contribution to delivery of key
Council priorities. The ongoing management input from the Council is
streamlined to keep down costs and is focussed on day to day management
activities that ensure that the market operates smoothly (eg managing pitches
and stall location, ensuring traders comply with standards, complementing the
other range of City Centre activities, collecting fees from traders). In this
model traders bear the vast majority of the risk. The success or otherwise of
individual traders, and the wider market, is largely determined by whether
consumers want to buy the products. Critics of this approach will argue that
shop based businesses suffer from increased competition because of lack of
regulation and that the City Centre as a whole suffers because the overall
look and appearance of the market is not tightly regulated.

Feedback from residents, visitors, users of the market and traders would
suggest that generally people don’t feel there is need to radically overhaul the
market. Consumers actually seem to like the eclecticism and diversity of the
Charter market.

Those that suggest that the market is in need of a radical overhaul, say that
now is the time to do so.

If Cabinet take the view that a radical overhaul is required then the view put
forward that a business plan and strategy for the market needs to be
developed and agreed is the best way forward.

A radical overhaul will require significant officer input in terms of developing
and agreeing a development plan. It would also be reasonable to expect that
once implemented much more management input would be required in the
day to day running of the market, which will require additional resources. In
addition to this it will further extend the waiting time before a decision on the
layout of the market is made. Already it is clear there is considerable
uncertainty and resulting friction. This is of course a side effect of any change
but is raised so that Cabinet are aware there is further potential were Cabinet
to request a radical overhaul.

There has also been some suggestion that the BID would be best placed to
deliver and manage the market. Whilst no detail of how this could work is
available the principle of it and the potential implications of it would seem to



2.7

2.8

2.9

Page 7

be contrary to the Council’'s aims, objectives and ethos. It would effectively
mean a delegation of stewardship.

Cabinet are therefore requested to consider whether a radical overhaul
of the Charter Market is actually needed. If so consideration should be
given to setting up a working group to develop a strategy and plan for
future provision of the market.

If Cabinet take the view that a radical overhaul is required then no further
decisions are required at this stage.

However, if Cabinet take the view that no radical overhaul is required then
consideration of a number of proposals is requested. These proposals are
likely to be seen by some as being too regulatory. In response to this clearly a
balance is needed. Even if Cabinet determine that a radical overhaul isn’t
required it is clear that as stewards of the City Centre the Council does have a
responsibility to ensure a generally acceptable standard for the market.
Having such a light touch that the market deteriorated into a city centre car
boot sale would be to nobody’s advantage either. Therefore the questions
Cabinet are requested to consider are-

QUESTION B1- How should current market pitches be laid out / and
presented?

In the latest round of consultation 2 draft layouts were proposed (SEE
APPENDIX B).

Layout A-

Based around the current footprint of the market, Market St, Market Square,
Cheapside. This option means that all existing permanent traders will still be
able to trade from pitches within this footprint. (Although in some cases the
pitches will be smaller)

o Reduces the amount of stalls in Market Square by 2.

o Only allows food stalls in Market Square.

o Distributes pitches for existing stalls between Market St, Market
Square, Cheapside.

o New traders will be allocated pitches on Church St / New St if there

are none vacant in Market St, Market Square, Cheapside. (To
encourage take up these will be free for an initial period).

o Existing traders will be given the opportunity to relocate to Church St
for a rent free period, on a voluntary basis

o Comes with the proviso that the standard of appearance of market
stalls is maintained to a standard specified by the Council.

o Sets out the maximum size of pitch that will be allowed at each

location. The pitch sizes have been selected to work in the given
location and to allow for as many pitches as possible.



Page 8

Layout B-

Deliberately alters the current footprint of the market so that there are only
pitches on one side of Cheapside. This means that some existing permanent
traders will be moved to new pitches in Church St. Pitches will still remain in
Market St and Market Sq.

¢ Reduces the amount of stalls in Market Square by 2

¢ Only allows food stalls in Market Square.

o Distributes pitches for existing stalls between New St, Market St, Market
Square, Cheapside (one side only) and Church St.

e Existing traders allocated pitches on Church St will be allowed them free
for a limited period.

e New traders will be allocated pitches on Church St / New St. (To
encourage take up these will be free for an initial period).

e Comes with the proviso that the standard of appearance of market stalls is
maintained to a standard specified by the Council

e Sets out the maximum size of pitch that will be allowed at each location.
The pitch sizes have been selected to work in the given location and to
allow for as many pitches as possible.

Note— in both options within the boundaries set out above the plan would be
to seek to accommodate traders’ views on where they were located as far as
we reasonably could. Clearly though in both options there will need to be
some movement of stallholders (eg in plan B it wouldn’t be simply a case of
moving the traders who were displaced from Cheapside into Church St
consideration would need to be given to what was best for the market) and
some stallholders may have reduced pitches from previously.

Layout A is generally preferred by shoppers and market traders.

Layout B is generally preferred by shop based businesses as it distributes the
market around a larger area and takes positive action to use Church St. Shop
based businesses say that will increase footfall to Church St (albeit only on 2
days per week) .Traders generally say that they’d sooner stop trading than
trade on Church St.

Neither layout is supported by those who say that now as the plinth is in place
in Market Square there is an opportunity to further add to be vibrancy of the
city centre by using it for entertainment events on Saturdays. To allow this
Market Square should be kept clear. In turn the added footfall from the
entertainment will benefit the market and shop based businesses.

It is proposed that implementation of either of these options would take place
in January 2015. Clearly there will need to be a degree of fine tuning
whatever option Cabinet selects. Once Officers have allocated pitches to
stallholders in the agreed layout they will then continue to monitor and adjust
as necessary. Only fundamental changes would be referred back to Cabinet.



2.10

Page 9

Officers already have discretion in the market rules with regard to appearance
of stalls. Following implementation of the new layout the focus of efforts will
be to improve the overall appearance of the market. There are already many
really good examples of what constitutes an acceptable stall. Notice will be
given to those which need to improve. Traders who don’t wish to improve the
appearance of their stall will no longer be provided with a pitch.

The market rules also set out clearly the responsibilities traders have with
regard to managing rubbish etc. Again traders who don’t wish to comply with
the rules will no longer be provided with a pitch.

From a financial perspective option A is the best option for the Council.

Cabinet are requested to consider which layout (A or B as shown in
Appendix B) is preferred for the market. The chosen layout will be
implemented from January 2015. Officers will allocate pitches to
stallholders and continue to monitor and adjust as necessary to ensure
the layout works effectively.

Cabinet is also requested to reaffirm that traders are expected to follow
market rules on matters such as appearance of stalls, tidiness of stalls,
leaving the pitch clean and tidy, not encroaching beyond the pitch,
being courteous to other city centre businesses etc. Furthermore
officers are instructed to ensure that market rules are followed at all
times and to take action against traders who don’t wish to comply with
the market rules.

QUESTION B2- How much should pitches cost?

Based on consultation is clear that pitches in Cheapside and Market St are
viewed by existing traders as the best to trade from. Current charges for
pitches are £1.35 sqg/m with £15 being the minimum charge. There is usually
a waiting list for traders.

Traders are provided with a pitch immediately in the newly upgraded public
realm of City Centre, with an existing footfall, which is likely to increase.
Looking at comparable markets the current amount charged for pitches is
very low. In some places comparable pitches are charged at double this
amount.

The cost of pitches has increased very little over the last few years. It is
therefore proposed that from April 1%, 2015 the charge increases to £1.80
sg/m and £20.00 minimum charge.

The charge for traders wishing to trade from Church St will remain £1.35 sgq/m
with £15 being the minimum charge. However for new traders wishing to
trade from Church St there will be an initial 6 month period where no fees will
be charged

Clearly this proposal could result in reduced income and would not be



Page 10

welcomed by all traders. It would however encourage traders to think about
where they might want to be located and what sort of products might they
want to sell.

The forecast financial implications of this are set out in the financial
implications box below.

Cabinet are requested to consider whether they think it is appropriate to
increase the cost of pitches on Market St and Cheapside from April 1%
2015 to £1.80 sg/m and £20.00 minimum charge. Traders wishing to
trade from Church St / New St will continue to be charged at £1.35sg/m
and £15.00 minimum charge. New traders requesting a pitch on Church
St / New St will be given an initial 6 month period where no fees will be
charged.

2.11  PROPOSAL B3- Concessionary pitches, street cafes etc

Besides Charter Market pitches the City council also charges for the use of a
number of concessionary pitches in the City Centre and also licenses a
number of street cafes. There is clearly a need to ensure that these also
complement the wider aims of the City Centre.

As things stand further some further work is needed to review the locations
and fees for concessionary pitches. Further work is also needed to ensure
that street cafes, concessionary pitches and market pitches all work together.

Cabinet are requested to delegate the implementation of this review to
the Chief Officer (Environment) in consultation with the Cabinet Members
responsible for Markets and Regeneration.

3.0 Details of Consultation

3.1 As outlined within the report

4.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

4.1 That Cabinet consider the proposals set out the report.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

As outlined within the report

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT

(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety,
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing)

As outlined within the report

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Legal Services have been consulted and there are no implications arising from this report




Page 11

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The latest approved revenue budget includes the following amounts in relation to the Charter
Market :-

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Original Estimate Estimate

£ £ £
Expenditure 20,200 30,200 31,200
Income (63,900) (63,900) (63,900)
NET INCOME (34,700)  (33,700) (32,700)

The above figures do allow for general estimates of recharges in connection with
support service costs, but they do not include the significant amount of Chief Officer
and similar time spent supporting the democratic process in matters relating to the
Charter Market.

The Charter Market is a trading undertaking operated by the Council and as such is allowed
to generate a surplus. As any changes to the number and price of pitches will have financial
consequences, a financial appraisal has taken place to estimate the likely impact of
approving either layout and can be summarised as follows :

2015/16 (Increase)/
Estimate Decrease

£ £
Current Income Level (63,900)
Layout A — no price increase (69,800)  (5,900)
Layout A — with price increase (93,100) (29,200)
Layout B — no price increase (62,000) 1,900
Layout B — with price increase (85,600) (21,700)

In this instance the level of suggested price increase seems reasonable when taking into
account the minimal overheads associated with operating a stall in comparison to nearby
shops (for instance stallholders do not pay business rates or BID levy). Any significant
resistance on behalf of the traders could result in decreased income levels but due to the
current high level of interest this is expected to be minimal.

Should Members decide that a radical overhaul is actually needed then there are no direct
financial implications at this time other than the consideration of officer time required to set-
up and administer a working group to develop a strategy and plan for the future provision of
the market. A further report will then need to be prepared to discuss the strategy.

With regard to non-market day concessions, street cafes etc, further work is required in this
area which will need to managed within existing budgets.



Page 12

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Human Resources:

None

Information Services:

None

Property:

None

Open Spaces:

As outlined within the report

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The s151 Officer has been consulted. The fact that the market is a trading undertaking
should have bearing on decisions regarding the cost of pitches. Information contained in the
report indicates that an increase is justified, taking into account the interests of local tax
payers.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Mark Davies
Telephone: 01524 582401
E-mail: mdavies@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref:

None




120168

sleg ho,w,,u‘,mo__..,...

wo'y vi,\,ﬂ\ P

09 29




Page 14

CHARTER MARKET LAYOUT
CONSULTATION

PLEASE COULD YOU SEND YOUR
COMMENTS ON THE ATTACHED
OPTIONS by noon 20*" October 2014

TO- mdavies@lancaster.gov.uk




Page 15

Promoting City, Coast & Countryside

Charter Market layout- Consultation phase 2- 8 October 2014

The closing date for responses to the draft market layout proposal have now been received. Thank
you for the comments you have provided.

The responses can be summarised as below-

* Market traders generally support the proposed market layout. However, there are concerns
as to where their stalls would be specifically located.

o Shop based businesses (represented by BID / Chamber) are supportive of the market and
generally think that it adds to the city centre offering and would like to see it develop.

¢ Shop based businesses (represented by BID / Chamber) view is that Market Square and
Cheapside should be kept clear and the Market should be located around Market St, New St,
Church St

o BID/ Chamber view Is that the Council could do more to actively plan/manage the market,

e The appearance of some stalls is very good but the appearance of some stalls needs to be
improved.

e Market traders generally have a view that if they move evena few yards from their current
location they lose business.

¢ Shop based husinesses have a view that havmg some of the market in Church St would
increase footfall thus benefitting that part of the City Centre. Charter Market traders take
the view that even if that were the case in the medium term in the short term they’ll lose
income.

e Some traders have suggested that it would be good to have food stalls together.

The common ground is that all parties value the market and want o ensure a thriving market.

In considering this it is quite easy to look at the market in isolation. However the market is just one
layer of the public realm in the city centre. There are lots of other layers that also need balancing.
These include-

° Concessidnary pitches

o Streetcafes

o Street cleansing

e Event management

e  Experimental Traffic Regulation Order

e Links to other parts of the City ~ e.g. Castle area, Canal corridor

& ‘A

¢ ™ INVESTORS
\‘gﬁé éﬁ' IN PEOPLE 0/5AB\5§}

\1 ABG&

[+L
.? l_;_-,&




Page 16

s

Because there is such a difference in views the Council considers that before any decision cah be
taken, further consultation needs to take place.

This further consultation is based on-

1.
2.

Building on the common ground
Taking a wider view of the issue than it just being about the [ayout of the charter market.

In putting forward the 2 alternative schemes for consultation a number of fundamental questions
need to be considered and we would welcome your views on these-

1.

oA

7.

How should the Council view the marke’&?—

e As something to facilitate and manage day to day with the main priority being to ensure

that there's enough pitches for traders, in the locations that best suit them.
or

o As something to actively manage and develop in a way that best complements the other

trading activities in the City, as well as the other aspirations we have for the City.

Or

e As an attraction in the city centre that makes the centre an attractive and vibrant place.

Given this, however, the market should be managed to take account of other users and
to make sure it achieves high standards.

If we were starting from a blank sheet of paper how should we layout the market? Is this
really a practical approach?

What would be the consequences of the model proposed by BID / Chamber?

If some market stalls are moved to Church St would customers move with them?

Were Market Square to be used would it be best to have it as a food stall only area?
How do we tidy up the appearance of the market?

Should consideration be given to charging different pitch fees in different locations?

The 2 optlons for consultation are

Plan A— .

Plan B-

o Reduces the amount of stalls in Market Square by 2.

e Only allows food stalls in Market Square.

e Distributes pitches for existing stalls between Market St, Market Square, Cheapside.

o New traders will be allocated pitches on Church St / New St. (To encourage take up
these will be free for an initial period).

e Existing traders will be givén‘the opportunity to relocate to Church St for a rent free
periad.

e - Comes with the proviso that the standard of appearance of market stalls is maintained
to a standard specified by the Council.

o  Sets out the maximum size of pitch that will be allowed at each location

Reduces the amount of stalls in Market Square by 2




Page 17

* Only allows food stalis in Market Square.

* Distributes pitches for existing stalls between New St, Market St, Market Square, Cheapside
(one side only) and Church St.

s Existing traders’ allocated pitches on Church St will be allowed them free for a limited
period,

e New traders will be allocated pitches on Church St / New St. (To encourage take up these
will be free for an initial period).

¢ Comes with the proviso that the standard of appearance of market stalls is maintained to a
standard specified by the Council

e Sets out the maximum size of pitch that will be allowed at each location

Note- in both options within the boundaries set out above the plan would be to seek to
accommodate traders views on where they were located as far as we reasonably could. Clearly
though in both options there will need to be some movement of staltholders {eg in plan B it wouldn’t
be simply a case of moving the traders who were displaced from Cheapside into Church St
consideration would need to be given to what was best for the market) and some stallholders may
have reduced pitches from previcusly.

This consultation is taking place to give all who have an interest in the market a further
opportunity to express their view. These views will be fed to Cabinet so that a decision can he
taken. Cabinet may decide to go with Plan A, Plan B or indeed a different combination.

Once this consultation has taken place a report will be presented to Cabinet for a decision on the
future layout of the Charter Market.

THEREFORE THE COUNCIL IS KEEN TO HEAR YOUR VIEWS ON THESE PROPOSALS. PLEASE COULD
YOU SEND YOUR COMMENTS TO- mdavies@lancaster.gov.uk

Thank you
Mark Davies
Chief Officer (Environment)

Lancaster City Council




Page 18

1103S 384 A0N

7102/50/62 @300
ROOM L43AN] AT UmoU] .

v 40dr

4S83.S0DUDT |
‘U4 UCI20D07

appsdnunon g yeees Yo Suowosy .m

1@
] LSV v,
FRLEE
A4ouc|ssasuol = 3 |
Ystld A3ldoyd g :
UOIFDWAC U] =407 |4
“\Amv._

aoys

<

0y £
Jouuon ]

SSAOH

[ ]
P&W(ﬂ:% P@XL,OZ

A EE




Page 19

PCOM AN AT UMDY
g uvold

‘U014 U031 CD0T]
HO3S 33740

7102/60/62 2300

JS3LS0DU0T L

sppsAnunon 9 aseon Wiy oS I

Y33ld

Y23Id Ap0u] g

AJOUOISS3DU0T) = 7 |

WO QWAD JUT =401

Aay) |

30USasSUoH

“

GSUUOT) . -

LIRS wmx&oz

g1




Revised CM Layout - Pitch Dimensions

Page 20

Pitch No. Pitch Size {width x depth, m) |Notes
3 4,50 X 3.00
4 3.00 X 3.00
5 3.00X3.00
8 3.00 X 3.00
7 3.00 X3.00
§ 3.00 X 3.00
9 6.00 X 2.50
10 3.00 X2.50
12 4.50 X 2.00
16 3.00 X 3.00
21 4.50 X 3.00
22 3.00 X3.00
23 3.00 X 3.00
24 3.00 X 3.00
25 4.50 X 3.00
25a 3.00 X 2.00
26 3.00 X 3.00
26a 3.00 x 3.00
27 4.50 X 3.00
28 3.00 X 3.00
29 3.00 X 3.00
30 3.00 X 3.00
31 3.00 X 3.00
32 3.00 X3.00
32a 3.00 X 3.00
33 3.00 X 3.00
34 10.00 X 4.50
35 4.50 X 3.00
36 3.00 X275
37 2.00 X 4.00
39 5.50 X 2.00
40 3.50 X 3.00
41 6.756 X 3.00
42 3.50 X 3.00
43 4,75 X 3.00
44 4.50 X 3.00
45 4,75 X 3.00
46 3.00 X 3.00
47 3.00 X 3.00
43 3.00 X 3.00
49 3.00 X 3.00
50 4.50 X 3.00
54 7.50 X 4.00 Pitch right back against wall
55 3.00 X3.00
56 4.50 X 3.00
57 3.00 X 3.00 Bollard in middle of stall
In front of Yates - currently they
58 4,60 X 3.00 use this space for their tables
In front of Yates - currently they
59 3.00 X 3.00 use this space for their tables
In front of Yates - currently they
80 3.00 X 3.00 use this space for their tables
Street Trading Pitches
ICP 3.00 X 3.00
C1 TBA
C2 2.00 X 4.00
C3 2.00 X2.75




Page 21

Charter Market Layout consultation summary of responses

Background

Cabinet (4™ Oct 2011) considered a report with regard to Square Routes. The report
considered the scheme that is currently underway.

Cabinet agreed that the rationale to agree to the works in Market Square was-

By a second phase of works to Market Square the council can look to complete a
transformation for the public benefit, providing:

An environment fitting to the Square’s role as the civic centre of the city
A place more active, pleasant and safe to spend time in

U
0
0 An improved layout for the outdoor market

T An environment fitting and complementary to the OIld Town Hall and the council’s
ambitions for use of this building

0 An improved setting and staging for events and performance

This should add to the attraction of the city to the benefit of business trading, much needed
in difficult economic conditions

Cabinet agreed the following-

(1) That Cabinet notes the progress in delivering the first phases of
improvements as part of Lancaster Square Routes including in Market Square.

(2) That Cabinet notes that officers will in due course report to the appropriate
portfolio holders on the future layout of the outdoor market, potentials for a street café(s) in
Market Square and how the existing Traffic Regulation Order for the city centre pedestrian
zone might best be revised and subsequently enforced.

(3) That Cabinet notes that officers will report to the portfolio holder on any need
or potential to support the county council in works to remedy the surface condition of Penny
Street and Horseshoe Corner in a way that is consistent with the Lancaster square routes
design visions and that the anticipated balance of funds in the city centre investment after
the first phase of works in Market Square fund for Lancaster Square Routes be reserved for
this purpose pending further reporting.

(4) That in preparing its proposals for the 2012/13 General Fund Capital
Programme as part of the budget process, Cabinet considers including an additional £300K
contribution to the city centre investment fund for Lancaster Square Routes in order to
provide for a second phase of works in Market Square.

Progress

With regard to (2) extensive consultation has now taken place with stallholders, shoppers,
shop based businesses directly the market and the Chamber/ BID.

As can be seen from the summation of the responses below the consultation has provoked a
wide range of responses (although what is positive is that generally all parties think having



Page 22

an outdoor market adds to the city centre offering). The fact there is a wide range of
responses is not surprising has revealed a number of things-

o There are some tensions between shop based and market based businesses. Some
caused by specific issues and some by more general ones. In some case shop
based businesses claim the Council favours market traders and market traders claim
the Council favours shop based businesses.

¢ Many of the more general tensions seem to be caused by perceptions as opposed to
being based on hard facts.

e Shoppers who responded were nearly all in favour of the market staying very much
as it is. We know that market traders were encouraging their shoppers to support the
market by contacting the Council. However, there weren’t any shoppers who took the
opportunity to say they didn’t like the market.

o Amongst all stakeholders there wasn’t much argument that some of the market stalls
would benefit from being tidied up. There are some subjective views put forward
about the quality/ type of goods on offer but the general feeling is this would be less
of an issue if the stalls looked more attractive.

¢ Some of the shop based community suggest that the market should be presented (as
some Councils have) in a very uniform way- identical stalls, rules on provenance of
goods etc. Shoppers don’t seem to want this and neither do traders.

e Some of the shop based business community think Market Square should be left free
of stalls to allow focus on developing a complementary entertainment offering in the
city centre. Church St/ New St could then be used for the market. Traders say that
no amount of inducement would compensate for the loss of income they’d expect so
they’d simply cease to trade.

e The decision with regard to the ETRO means that were the market to extend into
Church St/ New St there is a potential for conflict between the market and disabled
drivers. This has been raised with County who are currently considering how it could
be addressed (eg could disabled parking be suspended on market days- if needed).

Summation of Consultation Responses

NOTE- in reading the summary of responses there is a danger of seizing on
specific comments as explained in the accompanying report the responses are
provided to help provide context and this inform Cabinet’s decision. To take
them as isolated sound bites, or to use them to portray something in a an
oversimplified way, would as has been earlier stated be to miss the point.

69 respondents
Of those who gave a specific response to how the market should be laid out
30 said leave as itis

13 said plan A
10 said plan B



Page 23

In addition to this a petition consisting of 930 responses was received. The responses were
gathered from shoppers in support of ‘traders wishes to be left alone to get on with running
their businesses’.

Charter Mkt Responses
Market Traders -24

e Should have done consultation before works started

o Market provides an alternative attraction

e There won'’t be a market without traders

e There should be stalls in Market Square

¢ Some stalls need to improve their appearance

o Church St/ New St doesn’t have enough footfall to sustain a business and traders
would rather stop trading than be located there.

e [fit's not broke don't fix it

¢ Shop based businesses shouldn’t be involved in this debate

e Market / café culture can easily co-exist

e Shoppers like variety

e What do we mean by food stalls in Market Square

e Market Square best for hot food stalls as most seating there

o Market Square should have mixture of stalls in it (not just food stalls)

e City Centre improvements look great

¢ Well done to council for keeping market going during works

o Elderly customers will only come to stalls in a central location

e Stalls should appear neat, clean and tidy but not all look the same

¢ New traders / casual traders should be located in New St/ Church St

e Hot food stalls should be in Market Sq

o Employer of local people

e Lost 70% of takings when temporarily relocated in New St

o When it was in Church St 15 years ago only 5 stalls

e Plan A will secure a thriving market

e Plan A is unacceptable, Plan B is totally and utterly unacceptable

o Market traders shouldn’t be used as sacrificial lambs to improve footfall on Church
ST for existing businesses

o The suggestion this is being done to improve access / safety is nonsense

e Council’s first priority is to ensure there are enough pitches to locate traders in the
locations they want them

e The Council should not be interfering

e Locating stalls in Church St will reduce number of visitors

e Having a food only area in Market square is discriminatory

e The Council should provide stalls to traders

¢ Rent free pitches in Church St wouldn’t even be taken up

e Stalls are businesses and a livelihood

¢ Not practical to start from a blank sheet of paper



Page 24

BiD / Chamber have a vested interest

Could be different fees for different locations

Having events on plinth at the same time as the market really works

Customers think the market is beautiful and has an authentic feel

Lancaster is different from some other markets in that people don’t come specifically
for the market (eg Garstang, Kirkby Lonsdale)

It takes at least 2 years to build a trade even in Cheapside, Market St

The appearance of some stalls is a disgrace

Markets works best when food stalls are mixed with other stalls

Church St could be used for a themed market

The sun causes a problem for some food stalls in Market Square

Would be prepared to pay more to be located in Market Square

Some shop based businesses don’t respect traders

Shouldn’t be seeking views of shop based businesses, Chamber etc as they want to
get rid of competition

Market and events on the plinth at the same time don’t mix

Market and shop based businesses should support each other

Market Square should just have 4 stalls in it

Use Penny St for some of market

Leave Market Sq for the big market stalls

Shoppers-26

Council should charge market traders less as they are having to compete against
huge corporations

Leave as itis

Looks great as it is

Market is vibrant and mixed and has improved over the last few years
The market and the non mainstream choice it offers is why people come to Lancaster
Market shouldn’t be moved out of Market Square

Market sells items less well off can afford

An exciting part of a vibrant growing city

We should be concerned about the livelihood of traders

Market is the lifeblood of the city

Traders have already been affected by the ongoing public realm works
Café culture and market can co-exist

People shouldn’t have to search for the market

Shoppers wont go to stalls in Church St/ New St

Celebrate the local not the global!

Should be doing more to increase size of market

People move to Lancaster because of the market

The colour and arrangement of the stalls makes the place interesting
Let the market grow organically, with minimal interference

Should include Cheapside and Sun Square

The market is brilliant

A thriving market is better than a café culture

Relocate to Dalton Square



Page 25

o Market Square should be used for what most benefits the City’s citizens

Shop based businesses / Chamber / BID -21

e Revenues are higher on non market days

e Its located on key shopping streets which pushes footfall into a footprint that is too tight

e Council biased towards market traders

e |tis a hotch-potch of badly laid out stalls that often impede pedestrian access

e Shops pay more rates so should have more say

e Cheapside should be kept clear for cafes

e Stalls impede view of shops

¢ Not logical to prioritise market stalls over shops when they contribute so much in
business rates

e Tail wags the dog

o Let a private enterprise run the market

o Charter Market is an important part of the City centre

o Square Routes works make the City centre look really good. Impact is lost on market
days

¢ Many market traders aren’t locals

e Stallholders shouldn’t have a right to a particular pitch

e Stalls shouldn’t block shops

o Stalls selling the same products as shops shouldn’t be located near each other

o Market Square should have mixed stalls

e Have to put up with stalls outside the shop

e Traders inconsiderate to shop based businesses

¢ Cheapside should be clear of stalls

e Poor quality of goods for sale on some of the stalls

e Traders leave a mess

e Stalls outside shops impact on shop trade

e Plan B best for city

e Getrid of A -boards

e Food stalls should all be located together

e Church St already has an anchor stall and benefits from footfall from car parks and
bus station

e The city is improving its tourist offer yet it needs those tourists to shop in the city and for
retail to be an attraction in its own right.

e Lancaster is a great city but having a second rate market makes it uncompetitive.

e Placed on secondary streets, such as New Street, Sun Square and Church Street with the
specific aim or revitalising these streets and supporting bricks and mortar retailers their too.

e focus on a high quality offer that will be attractive to both locals and visitors alike and a
removal of low quality stalls

¢ New St too narrow for market. Causes problems with loading/ unloading etc

e Cheapside is currently cluttered on market days

e Surely Lancaster City Council can do put forward a strategy with real purpose and vision that
acts as an economic driver for the city rather than the superficial plan on offer?

e Market Square should be left clear so the plinth can be used for performances



Page 26

Safety concerns of stalls near fire exits

Well thought out strategy and business plan is required

Council should form a group to develop a City centre markets strategy. Once the key
stakeholders involved have been able to provide meaningful input that would be the
time to bring forward any layout proposals.

Market needs to be managed to complement all city centre activities

Some shop based businesses say that customers avoid city centre on market days
as too congested.

Footfall will follow location of stalls

Questions about hygiene of some food stalls

Improve appearance of some stalls

Only have stalls on one side of streets

Fees much too cheap

Some traders are rude and aggressive to shop based businesses

Leave Square free for performances

Further consultation / action plan needed which BID would contribute to



20

24 22

Spisdesyn

o I ©
Elsl 5] 3 =
: =
—
L] o] T

Emr

r-l‘—AAA

. gncaster Gate

Horseshoe

[44

oo

9z 8¢

F g |

6 4] 2

8

12 10

2
Ey'

(o)
SqUare

Mal’ket

Ll

e

/7/
Corner j\—" T
e

—

1 0 510 2

] Locologa]

=]
3t05
=102

| I

EE

] [=]

[ & =
O
21

17 § 19
=25 to

I“l |13|15|
T

LI 19

2537 45043

2

Title:

PH
'S
y Pitches

Lancaster City Centre

verty Group

1-7K0N

Crhala-



Page 28 Agenda ltem 7

CABINET

STOREY- Tasting Garden
December 2" 2014

Report of Chief Officer (Environment)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek a decision on the future of the tasting garden

I:I Non-Key Decision |:I Officer Referral IZI
key decision

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS OF CHIEF OFFICER (Environment)

(1) That Cabinet decides ‘in principle’ on the best option for the future of
the Storey Tasting Garden.

(2) That once an in principle decision is taken a further report on the how
the decision will be delivered is brought back to Cabinet.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Following consideration of the report ‘The Storey- Update’ (See Appendix A)
at Cabinet (Sept 2") the following decisions were made-

(1)  “That the report be noted.
(2) That City Council officers open a dialogue with Mark Dion to discuss:

a) the feasibility of moving the artwork to Williamson Park or another
suitable venue.

b) That in view of references to funding opportunities within
submissions received in support of restoring the Tasting Gardens, officers
make approaches to explore the possibilities of alternative funding.

c) That Cabinet visit the Tasting Garden and reconsider the proposal
once further details are available.

(3) That the draft master planning approach for the Storey’s gardens be
supported, and presented to Cabinet for consideration in due course.”

1.2 Cabinet have now visited the gardens.



1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

2.0
2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

3.0

Page 29

A response to part a) and b) has now been received from Mark Dion and is
attached at Appendix B.

Part of the Council’s ethos as set out in the corporate plan is that of
stewardship. This involves ensuring the social, economic and environmental
wellbeing of the local area. In practice active stewardship involves a number
of things including taking the key role in engaging, co-ordinating and
mobilising other public, private and voluntary bodies in delivering the council’s
strategic objectives for the place. How stewardship is exercised is a local
issue and needs to be determined by the Council in partnership with local
citizens.

The Council has a clearly defined strategy for the Storey Institute and this
includes the recognition that the gardens are an integral part of the business
plan for the facility.

In addition to this as a means of promoting economic growth in the District the
Council directly contributes to a number of artistic and cultural activities.

Proposal Details

It is clear from Mr Dion’s response that the artwork cannot be replicated in
another location in the District.

Mr Dion’s response also sets out a hope that funding may be available for
restoration of the artwork in its current location.

As was made clear in the previous report there is a polarisation of views on
this subject. In essence some people would like to see the art installation
restored to how it was originally intended. Some take the view that this is
unrealistic and the best thing to do is to make the best use of this space in a
way that it can be enjoyed by our citizens and complement the wider business
plan of the Storey Institute.

Restoring the art work and then ensuring the Tasting Garden could be
enjoyed by our citizens and complement the wider business plan of the
Storey Institute is clearly the ideal solution.

However, it needs to be remembered that the reason why the artwork and
garden is in its current condition is not because the Council has been
neglectful in its duties but because for a significant period, the Storey was
undergoing refurbishment and thereafter, it was outside of the Council’s direct
management and control. There appears to have been no major outcry
regarding the condition of the Tasting Gardens during this time. Furthermore,
over many years now the Council has been forced to make very difficult
decisions on how it prioritises its scarce resources.

The harsh realities of the process of prioritisation of resources become more
and more apparent as funding available to Local Government is further and
further reduced. This issue provides a really good example of the difficult
decisions that Councils are forced to make.

In determining the best way forward in this situation Cabinet have the
following options-

OPTION 1- Consider that restoration of the artwork is a priority for the
Council and that in its role as a steward the Council should properly
lead onit.

In order to arrive at this option Cabinet would need consider the following-



Page 30

What actual evidence is there that this is generally what our citizens
want?

How would the restoration be funded? If the Council was to allocate
resources for the Garden, in effect they would need to be redirected
from another initiative or activity. Realistically, therefore, it could be
viewed that the Council does not have the resources to directly fund
restoration and if so, external funds would need to be raised. We have
been told that there are likely to be funds available out there.
Experience tells us that obtaining external funding can be a
complicated and time consuming exercise, depending on the regime
under which funding is being sought, and match funding may well be
required.

How would the project be resourced? As stated above just raising the
funds could be time consuming and complicated. Due to the need to
prioritise and focus on core activities the Council does not have
available officer time or expertise that could be allocated to this, if
such a route was chosen. Therefore, Cabinet would need to consider
this as an area for growth, as appropriate.

How would the restored project be maintained? The ongoing
maintenance of the artwork would be intensive and would again
require ongoing growth — this need is a very real difficulty given the
financial outlook.

Even if funds are available obtaining them could take a number of
years, depending on the route chosen, and in any event the
timescales would not fit with the review of the Storey operation,
required by 2017/18. What does the Council do with the garden in the
interim and how will that support the Storey business plan? What
about the future? What would need to change?

OPTION 2- Consider that restoration of the artwork is a priority for the
Council, but only on the firm basis that it was resource- and risk- free for
the authority, and so could only take place if full responsibility could be
transferred, in some way, to a third party.

In order to arrive at this option Cabinet would need to consider the following-

The Council are properly stewards of the garden. How would
transferring/delegating this responsibility to a third party fit with that?
What evidence is there that the general desire of our of citizens is
that a valuable space is delegated to a third party to manage in the
hope that funds can be raised to restore the artwork therein?

What would happen if the third party lost interest in the project, or got
into difficulties, especially bearing in mind previous experience?

How would the long term maintenance of the project be funded and
managed?

How would this fit in with the business plan of the Storey, and the
requirement for the operation to be reviewed prior to 2017/187?

What would happen to the garden whilst the funds are being raised?

Cabinet need to be aware that gaining satisfactory answers to these
questions may prove impossible — there is no guarantee that this option is
viable and it could tie up much Officer time pursuing it, to no avail.



Page 31

OPTION 3- Accept that ideally the artwork would be restored and would
support the wider aims of the Storey and provide an attraction for our
citizens but that the reality is that the policy and financial context of the
Council mean that this is an unrealistic option. Therefore the most
realistic option is to make the very best of the gardens, within the
resources we have, and in a way that goes to meeting the needs of our
citizens and the business plan for the Storey. The details to be
determined through the masterplanning process that Cabinet have
already agreed.

In order to arrive at this option Cabinet would need to consider the following-

e What is the current and future financial position of the Council and
what are the competing priorities?

e This option may be seen by some as not supporting wider aims and
objectives for arts and culture in the District. However, this needs to be
balanced by the fact that the Council already provides considerable
ongoing support to arts and culture within the District.

e The view expressed by many citizens is that what really matters is that
the gardens are brought back into use. Done properly this option could
support the wider plans for the Storey and could (subject to testing
through the masterplan process) reasonably include use of the garden
to promote arts and culture.

e There is already an active ‘Friends of‘ group who the Council could
continue to work with to improve the gardens in the short term and
deliver aspects of the masterplan once agreed.

e This option is based around the current financial realities facing the
Council so would be designed to be delivered within existing
resources, and could fit with the future review of the wider Storey

operation.
4.0 Details of consultation
4.1 As set out in the report and appendices

5.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

5.1 The Cabinet agree in principle the way forward. Whatever option is chosen it
is expected further more detailed reports will be brought back to Cabinet.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

As outlined within the report

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety,

HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing)

As outlined within the report

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Legal Services have been consulted; there are no specific legal matters arising. The Council



Page 32

is under no obligation to restore the art installation.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no direct financial implications arising at this time, but clearly there could be in
future, depending on what option is chosen.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Human Resources:

None

Information Services:

None

Property:

As outlined within the report

Open Spaces:

As outlined within the report

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The s151 Officer has been consulted and her comments reflected within the report. In short,
this is another matter that Cabinet needs to consider in context of spending priorities/needs
and what is affordable in the longer term, and in the interests of council tax payers generally.
A whole life approach should be considered, taking into account future management and
maintenance requirements.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: mark davies
Telephone: 01524 582401

none . )
E-mail: mdavies@lancaster.gov.uk




Page 33 |
Agenda ltem -

CABINET

The Storey: Update Report
02 September 2014

Report of Chief Officer (Resources)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide a general update on the operation of the Storey and seek direction on the future
of the remaining Storey Gardens artwork.

Key Decision D Non-Key Decision -
Date of notice of forthcoming key decision _

This report is public.

OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS
{1} That the report he noted.

(2) That Cabinet supports the removal of the remains of the artwork ‘The Tasting
Gardens’ from The Storey’s gardens.

(3) That the draft master planning approach for The Storey’s gardens be supported,
and presented to Cabinet for consideration in due course.

1 Introduction

Back in May 2013 (minute 9 refers) Cabinet approved a business plan for The Storey,
based on the following key principles:

- the operation being developed as a going concern but with a formal review
planned prior to 2017/18;

- the aim being to at least break-even (annually) by then, in simple terms;

- the plan being based on a combination of providing business space for
commercial rent, as well as a venue for public events.

In line with these principles, community use of The Storey is to be supported but not to
the extent that it undermines commercial or financial targets. Future development and
use of the garden should also support this position and be integral to The Storey's
operations, rather than it being a separate facility.

Once the Storey's operations started to settle, Officers moved away from providing
regular specific update reports to Cabinet. This report has been prepared in response
partly to a request from Councillor Hanson, and partly to update Cabinet on a number




Page 34

of matters and seek direction regarding aspects of The Storey Gardens.

It brings together valuable input from Environmental and Regeneration and Planning
services, as well as Property Services, who have the lead/co-ordinating role.

The Storey Accommodation
Lettings and Room Bookings

The net estimated cost to operate the Storey this financial year is in the region of
£47 000, although this dees rely on how the Storey performs in terms of the level of
income taken from room bookings and the tenanted space.

The income target for hire of premises for meetings, public talks, theatre, live music
and exhibitions etc. is £20,400 for this year but current estimates project that by the
end of the year room hire could achieve in excess of £30,000. This would be a major
achievement as the income target was originally £12,000 when the Storey budget was
first established back in 2012/13.

The arts and event programme at the Storey continues to develop and this year has
included poetry, public talks, theatre and four exhibitions. Since April 2014, 1,500
people have viewed the exhibitions. The Storey has exhibitions confirmed well into
2015. Both the Lancaster Music Festival and Light Up Lancaster Festival will use the
Storey in 2014/15 and there are two further productions by Lancaster Footlights. In
addition to this Litfest are holding a regular programme of events, We Are Improv have
increased their bookings for the year from 6 to 12 and the Lancaster Literature Festival
takes place in October 2014.

To date 60% of the managed workspace is occupied. It is estimated that this could
rise to 71% by September 2014 as a number of companies/organisations have shown
a keen interest and work continues to secure additional fenants. The Storey has
recently benefited from the closure of St. Leonard's House as some tenants have
chosen to move to the building. In the current climate where the supply of office space
is outstripping demand it is a challenge to attract new tenants, and narrowing this
down to just the creative industries sector increases this challenge — hence increasing
occupancy is a real achievement.

The whole 3™ floor at the Storey is now a Yoga Studio, leased by Urban Buddha who
are providing a range of courses to attract some 200 people per week. A local artist
has leased space to operate a print workshop where they will create art, run public
workshops and provide studic open days where members of the public can go and
watch them at work.

The Storey may also support a project to develop a freelance artists” hub on the
ground floor; this could also see this group programme paris of the building thus
generating additional income for the Storey. The project would be funded via the Arts
Council, subject to a successful funding application. The project would also support
the further development of and act as a hub for activity around First Fridays (a
Lancaster Arts Partnership initiative) and the Storey would host the team who are
developing this work, again funded by the Arts Council.

There are a number of other potential lettings/bookings in development including:

¢ A research project with LICA and Imagination Lab around the Storey and visual
arts. LICA is developing the project and would submit an Arts Council funding



application. The project would require a project manager and curator to be in
residency at the Storey for the duration of the project. The project would look at
the history of the building, its original use, its current use and it would engage
with users and explore its future use around visual arts.

e A rock school with a company based in Blackpool offering weekly sessions to
young people who want to develop their musical skills. This work could lead to a
number of performances being staged at the Storey.

« A producer is exploring delivering a series of theatre/poetry events around Oscar
Wilde.

» Another producer is interested in deliveting a WW1 theatre performance in
November this year.

¢ There are also ongoing discussions with local artists who are locking for studio
space which could lead to the creation of an artist studio space in the Folly
Gallery.

Finally, Lancaster University have now signed a lease for office space on the first floor
for post graduate students. The lease is due to commence in October and the
University requires extended hours' access to the building. This has meant that the
facilities support presence within the building has needed to be reassessed. Property
Group are currently in the process of initiating a new staffing arrangement at the
Storey that will cover these hours for a minimal cost of circa £3K above the current
staffing budget of £24K; this difference will be covered by the increase in income in
the first instance.

Capital Works Programme

The condition surveys undertaken in 2012 estimated the building and maintenance
works required at the Storey to be £495K plus additional works to the garden walls in
the region of £100K, making a projected overall budget for the building of £595K.

£323K of work has been undertaken for the first phase of the ongoing delivery
programme and of this £160K has now been completed. The detail of the remaining
£272K that make up the rest of the projected overall budget is currently being worked
up and is planned to commence later in this financial year.

Once this programme is complete the emphasis will shift to a planned maintenance
programme, which should result in a lower financial commitment in terms of reactive
repairs and provide greater financial certainty for budget planning purposes.

The Storey Gardens Artwork
Background

There are two gardens at The Storey, divided by a wall. In the far garden are remains
of an art installation by Mark Dion. The artwork was called ‘The Tasting Gardens’,
taking up the majority of the garden. The art work was commissioned in 1998 as part
of ArtTranspennineg8, which was a collaboration between Tate Liverpool and the
Henry Moore Trust, and consisted of an exhibition of international contemporary visual
art in which 50 international artists created 40 artworks for 30 sites from Liverpool to
Hull. Most of the exhibits no longer remain.




Page 36

The remains of the art installation are within the walled garden, with paths in the form
of branches of a tree. Each of the four main branch paths bore a fruit {(apple, cherry,
plum and pear), and each small branch path led to a particular variety of tree together
with a bronze sculpture of a fruit on a plinth — although the bronze fruit are no longer
there. In one corner is the “arboriculturalist's work shed”, a folly or monument which
acknowledges the achievements of the men and women who created this diversity of
fruit varieties. The art work was vandalised a number of years ago and now needs
major restoration if it is to be retained.

Proposal Details

Since the Storey returned to the Council's management Officers have been engaged
in considering future options for the garden. Work has taken place between the City
Council, County Council and the active ‘Friends of Group to ook at how best the
space can be used in the future. In order to make hest use of the gardens
considerable work is required; some of this may be funded by bidding for external
funding. Therefore, Officers are to develop a master plan for the gardens. The master
plan will provide an agreed basis on which to develop the gardens and on which to
submit bids for funding. In summary, the proposed principles on which the plan will be
based are as follows:

1) Generally, the gardens are part of The Storey and should be included within the
wider Storey business plan as it develops.

2} More specifically, as part of the Storey offering Officers would ook to develop
further the garden that adjoins the Storey (e.g. for weddings, functions, etc.)

3) Although part of the wider Storey facility, the garden with the defunct art
installation lends itself to having greater use as a public open space, but clearly
fitting in with the opening times and use of the Storey and the adjoining garden,

All the above would provide a clear direction for the development of the gardens to fit
with the Storey's wider business plan, and would enable Officers to develop and direct
a work programme, allowing for input from the ‘Friends of’ Group and other resources.
The plan will also have regard to the future formal review of the Storey operation
ahead of 2017/18. The costs of developing the master plan will be contained within
existing budgets.

In order to take this approach, however, a decision needs to be taken on what to do
with what remains of the art installation in the walled garden, to ensure a clear focus
for the master planning approach. Cabinet's input is therefore sought, at this early
stage.

Details of Consultation

Consultation on the future of the gardens has been undertaken in conjunction with the
newly formed ‘Friends of Storey Gardens’ group. This has taken the form of open
days, focus sessions with the friends group, door to door questionnaires, exhibitions in
the Storey and Lancaster Library and discussions with stakeholders.

As might be expected there are different views with regards to what to do with the
remains of the art installation. These are distilled in the section below.

Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)



i

If thek ;rtwork was restored and

b
The removatl of the artwork would

Advantages resources provided to market it free up the second garden for wider
and maintain it an instaliation by development. Suggestions are on
an artist of international repute the line of a secret garden where
may attract additional tourism to people can meet, eat lunch, show
the area. temporary artworks, nature areas,

etc.
It may be possible to secure
funding to restore the art work. As | This is a sustainable option with no
an example The Henry Moore additional cost to the council, Itis
Foundation may be interested. not envisioned there would be any
additional cost charged direct to the
(If restored it would be possible to | Council for removing the artwork.
recast the sculptures in resin The healthy trees will remain.
which would deter thieves, but not
vandals). Consistent with the overall vision for
the Starey.
Whitst initial consultation has shown
an interest in artwork within the
garden, this could be addressed with
temporary / seasonal pieces to work.
{which is preferred by some on the
consultation responses)
Disadvantages Requires one -off funding to Final end of an already defunct /

refurbish the artwork, which wouid
need to be considered during the
budget. The cost is estimated at
between £30,000 — £50,000.
Could impact therefore on other
arts support.

All restoration and alterations
would need to be in agreement
with the artist for it to remain as
his work.

A reduced artwork would not be
acceptable,

It is estimated an additional £250
per annum would be required to
maintain the restored artwork,
excluding any required tree work.

i (The Friends group have already

indicated that they would not be
interested in maintaining the
artwork on the Council's behalf as
they have little interest in it
remaining).

It takes up most of the garden

dilapidated piece of artwork.




Page 38

area, only leaving the border to be
developed. There is limited
development opportunity in the
other garden.

The existence of artwork is not
widely known or promoted.

Risks

Funding is not secured.

Restoration conflicts with  the
majority of the Friends group who
then may lose ownership become
disinterested and disband - this

Could impact on the Council's
reputation in artistic  circles,
potentially (but bearing in mind the
current condition of the installation
and other arts support that the
Council gives, this risk is considered

will have an impact on the quality | to be very small).
of detailed work that could be
undertaken in the borders and
other areas.

7 Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

The preferred option is Option 2. The artwork has been severely vandalised and
would require major reconstruction and investment to return it to its original condition,
with ongoing maintenance and marketing to bring the work up to standard so that it
could be classed as a tourism asset for the district. The Council has no funds with
which to restore the artwork and it is not even clear where external funding could be
bid from. The proposed master plan will be reported back to Cabinet for consideration
in due course.

8 Conclusion

Good progress is being achieved in operating the Siorey; this will need fo continue
and strengthen if it is to break even by 2017/18. In terms of the Gardens, there is
much support for improving them, without the artwork, in a way that would complement
the main building and in terms of the far gardens, such improvements are unlikely to
have much financial impact. This way forward, as part of the master planning
approach, is considered to present a better opportunity to improve the gardens and
their use in due course, still fitting with the Storey’s business plan.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

In general terms The Storey contfributes to the Council's priority of sustainable economic
growth. The gardens may aisc contribute to the priority of ‘Clean, Green and Safe places’,
one success measure being to increase the number of projects that directly involve local
communities in improving local areas, parks and open spaces.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT (including Health & Safety, Equality &
Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing)

As autlined in report; none directly arising.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Legal Services have been consulted; there are no specific legal matters arising. The




FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
As set out in the report.
OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Human Resources/Information Services/Property/Open Spaces:
As outlined in the report.

SECTION 151 OFFICER'S COMMENTS

The 5151 Officer has contributed to this report, which is in her name (but in her role as Chief
Officer (Resources)).

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Nadine Muschamp
Telephone: 01524 6822117

E-mail: nmuschamp@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref: n/a

None




Page 40



Page 41

A Contact:  Mark Davies
e

(% Telephone:  {01524) 582401 s
fgk" ;(j:;% Email: mdavies@lancaster.gav.uk R @ INIEE
%{%{ft L ;_E; Webh Site: www.lancaster.gov.uk %—?ﬁ%ﬁig—%m e
- Promoting Cily, Coast & Gountryside
Wlark Dion Sorvice:
CO- Visual Arts Environmenial Services
P . . ;
Uggunbla University Vlarl Davies
a . Ghief Officer (Environment)
White Lund Dspot
White Lund Road
MORECAMBE LA3 3DT
29% Sept 2014

Dear Mr Dioh

You may he aware lhal there has recenlly heen much local debate about the future of your art
Installation ‘The Tasting Garden’ which Is located in the Storey Gardens, Lancaster, UK.

As things stand the work is sadly no longer recognisable as a work of arl. This is due to a number
of reasons including vandalism and lack of ongoing funding.

The debate that lacal polilicians are currently having Is whether lo restore the artwork or whether to
remove It alt together.

In order to help with this debate they have asked me to contact you as the artist, for youu views on
the following-

a) The feasibllity of moving the artwork to Williamsen Park or another silitable venue.

Essentially if funding were Identified for restoration what would your views be on toving the
artwork to another venue in Lancaster? Would this be acceptable to you? Would it be
practicaily possible? If it were what would the terms be of such a move?

b) That in view of references to funding opportunities within submisslons received in support
of resloring the Tasting Gardens, officers make approaches to explore the possibilities of
alternative funding. :

A number of Individuals and organisations have suggested that there may be funding available to
vestore the artwork. Were this the case would you still he happy for the artwork to be restored?

- =

] would he grateful for your views on these questions and indeed any other commenis yout have on
this matter. 1look forward to hearing further from you.

Yours sincerely

Mark Davies
Chief Officer (Environment)

Lancaster Glity Council ég-” ‘—{é’ INVESTORS és% :
\é&s éj IN PEOPLE p:dfsne.\_@

1N




Page 42

Sent: 04 November 2014 15:15
To: Davies, Mark

Ce

Subject: Re: Lancaster City Council

Dear Mark,

Thanks for getting in touch. 1 have followed the discuss around the Tasting Garden. At times it has
been quite disheartening.

On the other hand the support for the project in Lancaster, the UK and from around the world has
been encouraging. Not only have some of the most knowledgable and respected art professionals
written in support of the work, hut many of the signers of the petition were from Lancaster and have
had direct experience of the art work.

To be clear, the work was made for the site, and the condition of a walled garden. It is not possible
to mové the work from the Storey location.

{ am enthusiastically supportive of a restoration of the work and have heen so since the theft, The
restoration is possible given that Robart Williams has wisely saved the sculpted fruit and core
models. 1 believe it would reasonably possiblé to raise the funds for such a restoration given the
quality of the written support the work has received. The garden is Internationally renown and has
much energy around its restoration.

I would entirely endorse the restoration of the garden at its current location.

My best regards from Austin,

Mark

Mark Dion
(CoTTET T

On Nov 4, 2014, at 7:38 AM, "Davies, Mark" <MDavies@lancaster.gov,uk> wrote:

Dear Mark

Please see attached which F'd originally sent care of the Unlvers'ity at which you lecture.
Hopefully this finds you safely

| look forward to your response

Regards

Mark Davies

Chief Officer {Environment)
tancaster City Council




Agenda ltem 8 Page 43

CABINET

Smokefree Play Areas —
Introduction of a Voluntary Code
2 December 2014

Report of Chief Officer (Health and Housing)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek approval to introduce a voluntary code of no smoking within children’s play areas
and young people’s play facilities located in parks and open spaces owned by the council.

Key Decision Non-Key Decision Referral from Cabinet
Member

Date of notice of forthcoming 3 November 2014

key decision

This report is public.

RECOMMENDATIONS OF COUNCILLORS LEYTHAM AND SMITH

(1) That Cabinet approve the introduction of a voluntary code of no smoking
within council owned play areas, skate parks and multi-use play areas.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Research data illustrates that young people continue to take up smoking,
thereby replacing those who quit or die from the habit. Nationally 11% of 15
year olds are current smokers. However, the rate amongst young people in
Lancashire is higher with 16% of 14 — 17 year olds smoking.

1.2 The vast majority of individuals start smoking before the age of 19, as young
people are exposed to a mix of personal, social and environmental influences
which normalise the habit and encourage the onset of smoking despite its
addictiveness, expense and adverse consequences.

1.3 Children become aware of cigarettes at an early age, with 3 out of 4 children
being aware of cigarettes before the age of five, irrespective of whether their
parents smoke or not. If young people see smoking as part of everyday life
they are more likely to become smokers themselves. National statistics
reveal that children who live with smokers are twice as likely to smoke
regularly compared to those living in non-smoking households.

Research in social psychology and behavioural economics highlights that
influencing the adult world in which children grow up is pivotal to reducing
their rates of smoking uptake. The proposed implementation of smoke free
playgrounds reduces child exposure to smoking and de-normalises tobacco



2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

3.0

Page 44

use within the community.

In addition it should help in reducing the amount of litter from cigarette
papers, wrapping and used butts being deposited in our parks and open
spaces.

Proposal Details

Within Lancashire, Pendle Council introduced a voluntary smokefree code to
all outdoor play areas and skate parks in 2010, and subsequently the
remaining four District Councils in the East locality (Burnley, Hyndburn, Ribble
Valley and Rossendale) implemented a scheme in 2012-13.

Lancashire County Council would like to work in partnership with the
remaining seven District Councils across North and Central Lancashire to
implement a voluntary smokefree code of practice within council owned
playground areas.

The decision to implement a voluntary smokefree code has been taken as
any extension or amendment to the smokefree legislation for public places
and worksites under the Health Act 2006 can only be legally undertaken at
national level. Moreover, a voluntary code of practice empowers communities
themselves to change their smoking behaviour and supports self-regulation.

Implementation of the programme will be on the basis of a partnership
approach and to assist in implementation, county council Public Health have
secured funding for the production of signage and the development and
delivery of any necessary training.

The city council’s contribution would be in erecting the signs and any future
maintenance. It is anticipated that the costs of installing the signs could be
met from within existing maintenance budgets and would be installed over a
period of months with our largest, most prominent parks targeted first. There
are no direct enforcement costs as the code is voluntary and evidence
elsewhere shows that most people voluntarily adhere to the no smoking rule
and that “peer pressure” is sufficient. Park staff will however be briefed to be
able to offer guidance and advice if needed.

The council owns 79 play areas that would be included in the voluntary
smokefree code.

Details of Consultation

Consultation has been carried out by various means across various media
channels. A press release has been issued which appeared in the Lancaster
Guardian. An email was sent to individual friends groups and the Lancaster
Green Spaces group and information has been posted posted on the council
and park Facebook pages and via twitter.

Various children and young people contacts have been directly contacted.
Notices have been displayed on available play area/park noticeboards.

An online survey has been carried out and the feedback from this will be
presented verbally to Cabinet at the meeting.



Page 45

4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)
Option 1: Approve the | Option 2: Do not approve
introduction of a voluntary | the introduction of a
code of no smoking in council | voluntary code of no
owned play areas. smoking in council owned
play areas.
Advantages Reduce child exposure to | None

smoking and help to
decrease the number of
young people starting to
smoke.

Decrease cigarette litter such
as cigarette butts, empty
packets and wrappers to
make play areas more
pleasant and to protect
wildlife.

Encourage play area users to
discourage smokers in play
areas.

Project contributes to health
and wellbeing targets.

Disadvantages

Cost of installing the signs. Missed opportunity to work
There may be opposition from | in partnership with county
smokers who feel we | public health to help
shouldn't go beyond the |address a health and

statutory controls. wellbeing issue.

Risks Future maintenance costs | Reputational risk — not
could be high. However, this | implementing this would be
is unlikely as the signs will be | at odds with our health and
of robust quality and require | wellbeing priority.
little maintenance.

5.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments)

5.1 Option 1 — The introduction of a voluntary no smoking code is entirely
consistent with the council’s health and wellbeing corporate priority and can
be achieved with minimum impact on council resources.

6.0 Conclusion

6.1 Reducing child exposure to smoking and de-normalising tobacco use within

the community is desirable to try to reduce smoking uptake rates amongst
young people. Smoking is still a major public health problem and
implementing a voluntary code of no smoking in play areas is one way of the
council contributing to addressing the health, social and financial impacts of
smoking. In addition, smoking related litter should reduce in play areas and
this also addresses another important priority of the council.



Page 46

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

This reports relates to the health and wellbeing corporate plan priority specifically the
outcome - Health and wellbeing of our citizens is improved. There is a secondary link to the
priority of clean, green and safe places specifically the outcome — Local neighbourhoods are
clean and safe and residents have a sense of pride in the district.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety,
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing)

The recommendation in this report has only positive impacts on health, wellbeing, health &
safety and ASB.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no legal issues which would prevent the introduction of a voluntary code of no
smoking in children’s play areas.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As indicated in paragraph 2.4 and 2.5. The Smoke Free play areas is based on a partnership
with the Public Health Team within Lancashire County Council paying for all the signs and
Lancaster City Council incurring costs for installation and maintenance. These costs are
expected to be minimal and can be contained within existence playground maintenance
budget.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Human Resources:

None.

Information Services:

None.

Property:

None.

Open Spaces:

The implications are covered in the report.

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no comments to add.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Suzanne Lodge
Telephone: 01524 582701

none E-mail: slodge@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref: C124




Agenda ltem 9 Page 47
CABINET,

Corporate Performance Monitoring 2014/15
02 December 2014
Report of Chief Officer (Resources)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To present the corporate performance and financial monitoring reports at Quarter 2 of the
2014/15 performance monitoring cycle.

I I
Date Included in Forthcoming Decision Notice

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS

(1) That Cabinet considers this report and makes any comments or
recommendations as appropriate.

(2) That the Treasury Management report as set out at Appendix C be
referred onto Council for noting.

1.0 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE MONITORING 2014/15 - QUARTER 2

1.1 Following the approval of the Corporate Plan on 16 July 2014, Officers from
Governance have been developing the performance monitoring process to
ensure the ‘right’ measures are in place and that they can be measured
accurately and appropriately. Planned performance reporting in Quarter 2
has been deferred in light of a revised performance management framework
currently being developed and actions arising from a recent Investors in
People assessment. This report is, therefore, focussed on financial, property
and treasury management activities.

1.2 In terms of finance, the corporate monitoring report for Quarter 2 is attached
at Appendix A. This shows that in simple terms, as at 30 September there
was an underspending of £579K in respect of the General Fund, which was
projected to increase to £661K by the end of the year. For the Housing
Revenue Account (HRA), there was an underspending of £67K, which was
forecast to become an overspend of £342K by the end of the year.

1.3 These positions have been updated further, however, as part of the current
budget process. More up to date information on the budgetary position is
included elsewhere on the agenda. The attached corporate report provides
information on other financial aspects.

14 In support, the second quarter’'s update on Property matters is included at
Appendix B, and the position with regards to treasury management activities
is included at Appendix C.



Page 48

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural
Proofing)

None arising from this report.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None directly arising from this report.

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: Human Resources / Information Services /
Property / Open Spaces: None directly arising from this report (other than as set out).

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Deputy Section 151 Officer has prepared this report which has been reviewed by the
Section 151 Officer.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS

The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Andrew Clarke, Financial Services
Manager Telephone: 01524 582138

E-mail: aclarke@lancaster.gov.uk

Ref: Corporate Financial Monitoring 2014/15 Qtr 2

none




Page 49

Appendix A

Corporate Financial Monitoring
Quarter 2: July — September 2014

Report of: Financial Services Manager



Page 50

1 Introduction
This monitoring report for 2014/15 sets out an indicative corporate picture of the Council’s
financial performance for the period ending 30 September 2014.
The report summarises the budgetary variances arising through services’ monitoring, and
also identifies any omissions, updates and/or actions required. In addition there are
various other specific sections including capital expenditure and financing, the Housing
Revenue Account (HRA), revenue collection performance and various reserves. The
content and format of this report will continue to evolve, to draw on both national and local
finance matters.

2 General Fund Revenue Monitoring

11  General Fund Summary Position

1.2

The current overall General Fund summary position shows that at the end of September
there is a net underspend of £579K (Qfr 1 £212K) against the current budget. This is
forecast to increase to £661K (Qtr1 £264K) by the end of the year.

The main changes from Qtr 1 relate to increased salary savings of £255K, net energy
savings of £35K and additional net income of £80K.

‘ Annual Current Full Year
Budget Variance | Projection
£000’s £000’s £000’s

| Salaries | 20,124 | (346) |  (355)

| Transport | 1,783 | +19 | (8)

| Premises | 9,269 | (55) | (51)

| Supplies & Services | 11,236 | (51) | (74)

| Fees & Charges | (14,668) | 62) | (97)

| Grants & Contributions |  (3,157) | (77) | (69)

| Other Net Budgets | (6,047) | 7) | (7)

| Total ‘ 18,540 | (579) ‘ (661)

Savings Review

The original budget was approved with a number of restructure savings already built in.
The following table provides an update on those restructures plus any additional savings
achieved through similar reviews.

The table shows that the original budgeted savings of £322K have now been exceeded by
£111K.

All savings have already been incorporated into the current and projected savings above.

Prepared by Financial Services (Resources) 1



Page 51

[ service [ Details of Change Approval ' Budgeted [ Actual ' Total
Saving Saving Additional
£000’s £000’s Savings

£000’s

| Environmental | Service Restructure | Personnel | 160 | 160 | 0

| Governance | HR & OD Restructure | Chief Executive | 0o | 61 | 61

| Governance | Democratic Restructure | Chief Executive | 0o | 12 | 12

| Health & Housing | Sport & Leisure Restructure | Personnel | 100 | 118 | 18

| Health & Housing | Mini-restructure | Personnel | 0o | 13 | 13

| Health & Housing | Admin function restructure | Chief Executive | 0o | 7 | 7

| Regen & Planning | Service Restructure | Personnel | 62 | 62 | 0

| | | | 322 | 433 | 111

1.3  Main Budget Variances

Annex A details the major true variances identified to date that have been included within
individual services’ monitoring reports. The variances reported cover employees, premises,
transport, supplies and services and general income. A service by service picture is
provided below.

M Quarter 1 Net Underspends [ Projection for Year

£194,00¢ 204100
£149,800
£135,9500 £135,300 £138,100
£77,200 £80,000 £78,000
£47,400
Environmental  Governance Services Health & Housing Regeneration & Resources &
Services Services Planning Corporate Accounts

2 General Fund Capital Programme

2.1 Capital Expenditure & Financing

£12M
At the end of September there were spend and
commitments of £2.556M against the latest £10M
approved programme of £11.928M. Details of

spend against each scheme is shown at Annex B. £8M
It should be noted that slippage of £1.706M from
2013/14 has now been added to the programme. £6M
In addition two changes have been approved
under delegated authority: £4M

e Lancaster Square Routes; £30K funded £2M
from grant income.
e Aldcliffe Road Canal Side Access £0M
Improvements; £20K funded from S106 ) Budget Remaining

monies. O Spend & Commitments

Prepared by Financial Services (Resources) 2



Page 52

This gives an overall updated programme of £11.928M.

The performance of the Council’s property portfolio has strong linkages with capital
investment and financing, and therefore at this point attention is drawn to the Property
Group report at Appendix B, provided alongside this financial monitoring report.

3 Revenue Collection Performance
3.1 Collection Fund Monitoring
3.1.1 Council Tax Yield (Total Collectable)

This section provides a summary analysis of the current surplus or deficit on the Fund,
shown in the table below. Such a surplus or deficit arises because of the great many
changes in liability that occur throughout the year. Furthermore, any difference between
estimated and actual collection performance will ultimately have a bearing.

The table goes on to compare budgeted council tax yield, or total amount collectable, with
the yield position as at 30 September:

£000’s
Collection Fund Surplus (September 2014) (1,129)
Represented by:
2013/14 Collection Fund Surplus higher than forecast (568)
In-Year Movements to Date:
Lower Council Tax Support than estimated (221)
Net of Higher Second Homes/Lower Empty Homes +33
income
Other Movements (net increases) in Tax Base (373) (561)
(1,129)
Of which the City Council would retain 13% (147)
Note: Budgeted Actual
Projection Position
£000’s £000’s
Total Council Tax Collectable (Yield) 59,105 59,799
Actual amount collected (34,202) (34,202) 57.2%
Amount Outstanding 24,903 25,597

As at 30 September, there is an estimated surplus of £1.129M (2013/14 Qtr2 £1.320M),
which is £191K less than the same period last year.

This year’s position is made up of:

- additional surplus brought forward from 2013/14 of £568K;

- £221K lower than estimated council tax support. This will continue to fluctuate as
claimants’ circumstances change, but since establishing the scheme proposals back in

the autumn/winter of 2012, the trend is still that the total support being claimed is lower
than expected;

Prepared by Financial Services (Resources) 3



3.1.2

Page 53

- overall £33K lower than estimated income from second/empty homes (specifically
identifiable);

- abalance of £373K (2013/14 Qtr2 £631K) relating to other movements in the tax base
or other factors which have still to be substantiated.

Should the tax base increase each year by more than originally estimated, this too helps
towards balancing the General Fund revenue budget for future years.

Business Rates Retention

The following table shows the latest retained business rates position at the end of
September.

The table shows provisional additional income of £4.072M, of which 50% (£2.036M) is
payable to Central Government and 50% (£2.036M) retained by the Council. However, it
should be noted that this position could change significantly depending on the outcome of
appeals.

At present, a total provision of £9M has been made for appeals prior to 31 March 2014,
which includes £7M in respect of a number of very large appeals. However, latest
projections estimate potential liabilities at £9.9M to 31 March 2014. Separately, a further
£2.7M is currently provided for appeals after 01 April 2014.

Due to the uncertainty surrounding appeal valuations, it would not be prudent to assume
this is all guaranteed additional income to the Council until these appeals have been
settled. New indications are that the larger appeals will not be settled until March 2017.

The implications of this on the Council’s financial planning will be expanded on and
addressed during the current budget exercise.

2014/15
£000’s
Net Collectable Amount of Business Rates 71.174
Less: Provision for Appeals (2.737)
| Net retained business rates | 68.437
Less:
Central Government Share — 50% (34.219)
County Council & Fire Authority Share — 10% (6.844)
| Lancaster’s Retained Business Rates Share — 40% | 27.374
Less: Tariff payable to Central Government (19.392)
Add: Small Business Rates Relief Grant 1.199
| Total Amount of Retained Business Rates | 9.181
Less: Lancaster’s Baseline Funding Level (5.109)
| Provisional Additional Income | 4.072
Split as follows:
| 50% Levy Payable to Central Government | 2.036
| 50% Retained by Lancaster | 2.036

Prepared by Financial Services (Resources) 4



Page 54

3.2 Council Tax and Business Rates Collection

The percentage collected for council tax is slightly below target but expected to recover by
the year end. For Business Rates the position is slightly further behind, but this is due to a
number of transactions which will be processed in Qtr 3. Again, expectations are that it will
broadly recover by the end of the year.

Percentage 201314 | 2014/15 | 2014/15 | 2014/15 | Status
Collected Target Actual

All Years In Year
Council Tax 52.5% 52.1% 57.3% 57.2% Behind
Business Rates 59.5% 55.5% 58.5% 56.6% Target

3.3  Sundry Debts

This section sets out the latest position on the level of outstanding sundry debts (excluding
Council Housing). At the end of September the total debt outstanding was just under
£3.3M. Officers are analyzing and investigating this further.

Analysis of Aged Debt

June 14 Sept 14 £1,400K
£000’s £000’s £1,200K
0-28 days 824 704 £1,000K
29-58 days 185 216 £800K
59-90 days 425 127
91-182 days 269 695 £600K
183-363 days 396 384 £400k
364+ days 1,145 1,170 £200K [I
3,244 3,295 cok LI [! L |m | .
Previous Year 2,562 2,753 0-28  29-58 59-90 91-182 183-363 364+

days days days days days days
OJun-14 @ Sep-14

H<28Days H 28-59 Days 60-91 Days ®92-183 Days ™ 184-364 Days M 365+ Days
el
enviromental services [ ——— N
Resources _

Health & Housing m

Regeneration & II
Planning

Governance |

£0 £250,000 £500,000 £750,000  £1,000,000 £1,250,000 £1,500,000  £1,750,000

e e e et ————r————



Page 55

4 Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
41 HRA Revenue Position
At the end of September the position for the HRA shows a net underspend of £67K
ﬂ against the current budget, which is currently projected to become a net overspend of
£342K by the end of the year. Details of the variances are as follows:
Expenditure:
Employees Current (£62,600) Forecast (£68,800)
There have been a number of vacant posts within management and administration and
central control which have now been filled.
Repair and Maintenance Current (£5,600) Forecast +£409,400
Whilst the current position shows a slight underspend it is forecast to become an overspend
of £409K by the year end. This is in line with the outturn position for 2013/14 which was
overspent by over £500K. Officers from Health and Housing, Environmental Services and
Financial Services are already working together to establish the reasons for the increased
spend and what actions can be taken to mitigate it.
Energy Costs Current (£30,700) Forecast (£32,900)
Usage to date has been lower than anticipated in all communal blocks of flats resulting in
the above savings.
Income:
Rental from Council Dwellings Current +£31,400 Forecast +£34,400
The main variances relates to the increase in void levels from 1.63% to 1.90%, and Right to
Buy levels increasing from 5 to 10 in the previous year (2013/14), which was not forecast in
the 2014/15 estimates.
4.2 Council Housing Rent Arrears
This section monitors the level of tenant arrears, to indicate any impact from welfare
reforms and/or the wider economy on rent collection and in turn, to inform whether any
specific actions are necessary. It will also feed into future reviews of the bad debt
provision.
The following chart shows the current level of arrears compared to the previous 2 years.
At the end of September, the level of arrears for 2014/15 is £282K (2013/14 Qtr 1 £245K)
which is £50K higher than the previous quarter this year.
Tenant Arrears by Year
£310,000 -2014-2015 - - 2013-2014 - 2012-2013
£290,000 ’,l ll\ ’
2 y . | I"I \ r';"-_ || ,’ \\
£270,000 ,'I \“/‘1 el :"‘ JE d Ko ‘\\ .
7 /I\ ’t =, l‘ | 1, “ ,’ \‘ ,’ \ I \\ t i “
£250,000 A LN e T T '
N ”“ \\ o . |‘I '\ ‘,,-"-'-. 1% i “ f - ||
£230,000 ! el LT i ,' I '\\ 5 !
£210,000 ’,-’ ‘ - 1

Prepart

£190,000 ’
£170,000

£150,000
1 3 5 7 9 11 13 15 17 19 21 23 25 27 29 31 33 35 37 39 41 43 45 47 49 51 53



Page 56

4.3 HRA Capital Programme

This section analyses actual spend and commitments against the Council Housing Capital
Programme at the end of September. To date spend and commitments total £2.267M
against the programme of £4.844M leaving a balance of £2.577M.

Current Spend & Budget
Approved Commitments Remaining
Programme to Date £000’s
£000’s £000’s
| Adaptations \ 300 | 126 \ 174
| Energy Efficiency / Boiler Replacement ‘ 660 | 377 ‘ 283
| Bathroom / Kitchen Refurbishment | 1,097 | 510 | 587
| External Refurbishments | 999 | 517 | 482
| Environmental Improvements ‘ 950 | 385 ‘ 565
| Rewiring \ 83 | 10 \ 73
| Fire Precaution Works | 250 | 49 | 201
| Lift Replacement | 120 | 0 | 120
| Re-roofing / Window Renewals | 360 | 292 | 68
| Septic Tanks Renewal ‘ 25 | 1 ‘ 24
| TOTAL ‘ 4,844 | 2,267 ‘ 2,577

5 Provisions and Reserves

This section provides an update on key provisions and reserves, and balances.

5.1 General Fund Unallocated Balance

The current position with regards to unallocated Balances is set out below.

| . £000’s
Original projected balance as at 31 March 2014 3,436
Add: 2013/14 underspend 277
Less: Budgeted Contribution for 2014/15 (458)
Add: Current Projected In-Year Underspend 661

Latest Projected Unallocated Balance as at 31 March 2015 3,916

Less: Minimum Level 1,000
Less: Budgeted Contribution for 2015/16 1,000
Amount Available to Support Future Years’ Budgets 1,916

Prepared by Financial Services (Resources) 7



5.2

5.3

Page 57

The table shows that if the current projected net underspending materialises Balances
would be £3.916M by the end of the financial year. This would result in £1.916M being
available to support future years’ budgets, after allowing for the minimum approved level
and the £1M already budgeted to support the 2015/16 budget.

Insurance Provision

The current balance on the insurance provision is £267K, after making net payments of
£51K in settlement of claims made. The estimated value of claims outstanding is £240K,
which is £27K less than the current provision. A full review of the provision will be
undertaken during the forthcoming budget process.

Bad Debt Provision

The level of the provision has been assessed in simple terms based on assumed levels of
write-off as a proportion of debt outstanding. Based on the figures shown in section 3.3 the
required level of provision would be as follows:

Period ‘ Debt % Cover | Value
£000’s Required | £000’s

| Up to 1 Month | 640 | 1% | 6
' 1Monthto 3Months | 231 | 5% | 12
| 3Monthsto 365 Days | 667 | 10% | 67
| Over 365 Days | 152 | 50% | 76
| HBen Overpayments | 1,605 | 60% | 963
' TOTAL | 3,205 | 1,124

The current balance on the General Fund Bad Debt provision is £1.135M which is £11K
more than the requirement indicated, which is after allowing for this year’s contribution of
£100K and write-offs of £67K. A formal assessment will be undertaken as part of the
forthcoming budget process.

As highlighted previously, the planned implementation and roll out of Universal Credit could

potentially increase risks regarding the future recovery of housing benefit overpayments
and this will continue to be monitored.

Contract Procedure Rules and Other Exceptions to Tender

In accordance with the latest approved contract procedure rules all exceptions to tender
and other significant contract variations will be reported as part of the quarterly corporate
monitoring process.

There are no exceptions to report for this quarter.

Prepared by Financial Services (Resources) 8



Annex A

Page 58

(008‘099) (000°6£S) wLi0L
(ooz‘zzt) L (00¥SS) (0oos‘ovT) L (000'57) paJan0231 51502 |BS3| Ul 95B2J0UI - SANUBAY

00v'vL 009°6 sa1adoud |e1DJaWWod WO dWodul [elual paonpad - Ajadoud

(000°2) (000°2) 1S9491U1 JUBWISIAUI [BUOILPPE - SDIIAISS |BIDUBUIY

(oot°2) (00172) awoou| Juels jeuonippe - 1J| $921N0SaY

(00€‘29) (008‘sz) SuspJeD Yuomsieyd 4o 10adsau ul pawiejd swodul [euoiippe 19N

00501 - 9WOdU| WJ041e|d Ul uo1dNpaJ paldafoid

(oot's€g) (00€T) awooul 99} uonediidde Sujuue|d jeuonippy ujuue|d g uonesauaday

(009°0¢) (oo6°0T1) Sluel8 H4Q WoJj 3wWOodUl Ujwpe [euollippe snid sadu31| QIAIH Ul 3seaJldu|

00L'9€ 00€°8€ SWOdUI Ul UOI3dNPaA 38U - dJ43ud) sHods aJAy yjes 3uisnoH 13 yyjesH

00vL 00€CT pa3npaJ S99} 92UJ|| pue Sa9} |eSa

(00z’'62) (000‘02) 95Ee2J0U| 0} SUINUIIUOD dWODUI 33} YdJeas 9JUBUJBNOD

(00€‘6L) (000°6L) S10BJIUOD |BUOIIPPE 19U - SWOJU] 9SN}a4 apeJ]

008°L 006°€ 9%0T UMmop sjemaual ywuad Supjied 192415-10

- 00S‘ST WP'SF £ SulusAe YT 0TF ¢ dwnAep - 1981e1 mojaq awodul Supjied 193435-J40 S92IAJS [BIUSWUOIIAUT s984ey) 13 s994

(oog‘ez)  JL (00€’9) (oot‘ts) L (00sv) sSuines Jouiw snotiena - Ayadold

00t'6T 006'TT S99 3uled / s1502 33| paseaudul - SSNUINY

(0oog‘6T) (00s‘8T) s3ulAes 92Ud2]| 941eM1JOS / SdueUUlEW duoyda|al - D] $924n0SaY

00£°LT 006°LE 51509 |e39| |euonippe 01 Sunejau Ajuie|y Suluue|d 3 uonesauaday

(oog‘91) (00s‘zT) S|EJIWAYD 13 9|eSJ 404 S|BLIDIBW ‘S9IUII| UO spuadsiapun - 843ud) spods aJAY }jes SuisnoH 3 yeaH

(oot’z) (0089) SaAllelIul @2uewlopiad / 91es0daod uo puads [euislxa paonpad Ajule|y 9J2UBUJIIAOD)

(006°TL) (oot‘8s) s3uines ul 3uiynsas uonyedado aisepn Ayjng pasnpay S9IIAIDS [EIUSWUOIIAUT $921AJ9S 1 salddng
(oog‘ts) L (0ooz'sg) (0o8‘vs) L (00sTE) saiiadoud Jay3o ||e ssotoe s1502 ASJaua uo sguines $921n0saY

(001'8) - A1191 2U03S U0 51502 ABuBus padnpay 3uluue|d g uonesauaday

(0058) (008‘TT) 51502 sed paseaudul /1502 A1D14123|2 pPadnpad 1au - a4jua) suods aJAy 1jes 3uisnoH 13 yyjesH

00S‘€ (oos‘ot) 51502 AZJ4aua yued uoswel||ip uo puadsiano paydafold S9IIAIDS |EIUBSWUOIIAUT Sasiwald
(ooe’s) L (oov‘67) 00z'6T 4} (001'8T) €T0Z 2UN[ GZ 9911 [2UUOSI - 92UBMO||R J3sh JeD) S92IAIBS ||V

00112 00€°LE s3uines [an} pajdafoud Ag 19540 Sulaq SUOISUIXD 3Sed| 3DIYIA Ajule|p S9IIAIDS [EIUSWUOIIAUT podsues]
(ooz‘ssg) L (000°7T) (008‘sve) L (000°9L) (1eaA ayy u1 418 195140 34 ||IM) SBulAes s3s0d JuedeA $904N059Y

(00895) (008v€) s3ulnes JaAoun) pue sinoy Supom padnpay Suluue|d 3 uonesauaday

(009°50T) (00192) s3uiaes JanouuN) pue Ajulalew ‘9in1dnJisay 8uisnoH 1 yyeaH

(0ooo0‘10T) (00£8S) sSuiAes JanouIN} pue 24N3oNJISAY S92IAJ9S 9IUBUIBAOD)

(0082L) (0ooz‘00T) sguines Janouiny S9IIAIDS [RIUBWUOIIAUT saaho|dwy

JeaA 10y uondafoid

S9duelleA juaiin)

JduelieA 10} uoseay

ERITYELS

193png anuanay pund |[eJauan :ONIYOLINOW TVIONVNI4 3LVHOdY0)D

ealy 9A1I3[gns




(000°2L)
(000°2)

(00s29)

(0oot‘tS)
(008%S)
00Z°6T
(008‘st€)

3

Joueuep |ejol 338png [enuuy

F S
v

000°0¥S‘8T
00T‘€2V'T
(00€‘8Ly'SL)
(oog‘zez‘er)
(000‘0ST)
(001LST€E)
(009°0t'T)
(ooL‘0€T'SY)
(009°299vT)

00256516
000°SZT’E
006700Vt
00£°9T
00€°L£0°T
009'SETTT
00T‘692°6
00628L‘T
oos‘€ztoe

3

(008‘6T)

0009189
00S'€vT’T

(000‘8L)

00v‘SYLE
000°SLT

009°€09

(000‘08)

00v'TZT'E
(000'02)

(0o0z‘LL)

008299‘T
(000°sT)

(000‘v6T)

008‘orv‘c
009°6€

(00L‘0zeCS)

(oot‘2L)

(006°58L°T)

00v°LT

(000052)

(00£°2)

(00€'T69)

(009°6S)

(0oov‘9ze8T)

(009'T15°T)
(0o0‘0sT)
(00S‘9S¥)
(009°2€T)
(005'690S¥)
(00S's¥8'Y)

(008‘sL)

(00€°T)

(008'%€)

(oov'stL)

(002'19)
(00Sv¥6)

00vLT

(009°S)

(008‘0zv)
(002)

(0oot‘0€02)

(00Z'T)

(0059)

(008‘00T)

(008)

(00£68S)

(009°6S)

(0oos‘zes‘ot)

(009°€€ST)
(0082)

(00s°252'9)

00Z'€68°9S

(006)

00€°9S€’s

(oot20T)

00v‘s9‘s

(00569)

00T'69€C

(00t vET)

009°L2L°0T

20ueuep

000'STT’E
006'700'7Y
00£'9T
009'S9L
00T'6€S°E
000'S€9°T
006°0T
006'S6L°E

3
198png |enuuy

S3UN02dY

91e10d.10) 13 s324N0S3Y

006°LE

(0007)
(008€)

3

2duelep

000°ZTT
000°086'T
00Z'6%9
00€'SS
008°65SC

198png
lenuuy

Suiuueld

13 uonesauasay

0067
0016
009'68S

K 3
dueuep 198png
|enuuy

(00s‘zet)
(008‘TT)
(000°2)

(00192)

3
ajueuepn

00T'TE
006'90T°T
00T'€T8
00£°£0T
00v'98Y°€

198png
|enuuy

S9JINIBS
SuisnoH 3 yyeaH

(0089)

(000'Y)
(00£8S)

3
aaueuep

S9IINI3G 3OUBUIDINOD

00Z'TT
00£'S€6
008'9€
00v'S8E‘T

3
198png
|enuuy

(00t'8S)
(00s‘0T)
00LvE
(0ooz‘00T)

3
ajuelep

00€'LTT'T
006'899°€
00£'TLT9
00T'€9Y'T
009'90€°8

3
198png |enuuy

S9IINIDG [_jUBWU

V10l 13N
SNOILVI4dO¥ddV 1IN

JNOONI TV10L

sadieyoay

awoou| Supueuld jeyde)
1NQlI3U0) pUk SjueID JaY10
1s2431u|

SJUBJD JUBWILIAN0D
sagiey) pue saa4 Jawoisn)

JINODNI
FYNLIANIdX3 TV1OL

sjuawAed 1saJaqu|

sjuawAed jyauag Suisnoy
elwaid 192@

sadieyoay

$3JIAI3S pue saljddng
ainjipuadx3 paie|ay sasiwaid
ainjipuadx3 paje|ay Modsuea)
saahojdwg

FANLIANIdX3




Page 60

Annex B

GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING REPORT

SERVICE SCHEME

Environmental Services
Allotment Improvements
Bins & Boxes Lease Buy-out
Car Park Improvements Programme
District Playground Improvements
Vehicle Renewals
Toilet Works
Will Park Improvements & Enhancements
Health & Housing Services
Disabled Facilities Grants
Salt Ayre Cycle Circuit Lighting
Salt Ayre Centre - Replacements/Refurbs
Warm Homes Scheme
Regeneration & Planning
Amenity Improvements
Arnside & Silverdale AONB Improvements
Bold Street Housing Regeneration Site Works
Brindle Close Affordable Housing s106 Scheme
Cycling England
Chatsworth Gardens
Improving Morecambe’'s Main Streets
Lancaster Square Routes
Luneside East
Middleton Nature Reserve s106 Scheme
Morecambe THI2: A View for Eric
Riversview s106 Scheme
Sea & River Defence Works
Toucan Crossing King Street
Resources
Corporate Property Works
ICT Systems, Infrastructure & Equipment
Total Gross Programme

Grants & Contributions
Capital Contributions Income

Capital Grants Income
Total External Income from Grants & Contributions

Total Net Programme

2014/15
Gross
Budget

£

32,000
12,000
385,000
125,000
632,000
137,000
83,000

869,000
0
30,000
37,000

31,000

0

386,000
80,000

0
1,878,000
360,000
1,352,000
2,000
21,000
641,000
232,000
163,000
13,000

3,940,000
487,000
11,928,000

(1,093,000)
(1,589,000)
(2,682,000)

9,246,000

Commitments

A‘gutal to (Outstanding
ate Orders)
£ £
16,039 4,324
71,628 -
95,842 -
- 76,727
2,311 -
353,118 -
306 -
29,986 -
141,920 351
80,000 -
2,564 7,235
667,576 34,837
7,853 -
7,030 -
132,400 -
6,765 18,157
9,659 -
448,195 176,507
93,743 71,124
2,166,935 389,262
(406,901) -
(1,175,133) -
(1,582,034) -
584,901 389,262

Total

20,363

71,628
95,842
76,727

2,311

353,118
306

29,986

142,271
80,000

9,799
702,413
7,853
7,030
132,400
24,922
9,659

624,702
164,867
2,556,197

(406,901)
(1,175,133)
(1,582,034)

974,163

Variance
+Overspend /
(Underspend)

£

(11,637)
(12,000)
(313,372)
(29,158)
(555,273)
(134,689)
(83,000)

(515,882)
306

(30,000)

(7,014)

(31,000)
(243,729)
(1,878,000)
(350,201)
(649,587)
5,853
(21,000)
(633,970)
(99,600)
(138,078)
(3,341)

(3,315,298)
(322,133)
(9,371,803)

686,099
413,867
1,099,966

(8,271,837)



Page 61

Appendix B

Property Group Update

2014/15 Quarter 2:
July — September

Report from: Senior Property Officer



Page 62

1.0 Introduction and Background

This Quarter 2 report is intended to provide an update on previously reported projects
and initiatives and to highlight any significant emerging property related issues. This
report is not intended to provide in depth updates on all ongoing individual property
cases.

2.0 Corporate Non-Housing Property Portfolio Delivery Programme

As explained in previous reports, individual projects within the delivery programme
fall into three procurement groups based on their value i.e. Minor Works (MW),
Intermediate Works (IW) and Projects (P).

It has been reported on a number of occasions and is worthy of note again here that
budget flexibility between individual projects is essential. This is because the costs
taken from the condition survey data to build up the original five-year budget were
purely indicative, having been estimated based upon non-invasive surveys. As such,
the levels of work required at each property have increased or decreased as detailed
specification work for the procurement process has progressed.

2.1 Year 1 Delivery Programme

Property Group was allocated a budget of £2.402M for financial year (2013/14) to
fund the implementation of the 1% year delivery programme.

A summary of progress to date follows:

2.1.1 Minor Works (MW) Project Progress

Total Indicative Indicative Works Total Approved
Property/Project Works for Brought Forward PP
Tender (AMP)
Year 1 from Year 2
14 Buildings £49k £49k £103k

The Minor Works project has now been successfully completed and contained within
the Agreed Maximum Price submitted. This work was contained within the repair and
maintenance revenue budget and therefore does not count towards the 1% year
delivery programme’s capital spend.




Page 63

2.1.2 Intermediate Works (IW) Project Progress

. Original Total
. SUb.m't Approve Indicative | Approved Proposed
Property/Project Design | Tender /Actual
Works AMP &
/tender (AMP) st Start Date
1° Year Fees
White Lund Depot (1) 12/11/13 | 28/11/13 £231k £113k 27/1/14
Lancaster Cemetery Chapels (2) | 12/11/13 | 24/12/13 £80k £175k 27/1/14
Lancaster Town Hall Railings (3) | 23/09/13 | 30/09/13 £50k £47k 02/10/13
Lancaster Town Hall Paving (4) 23/09/13 | 30/09/13 £30k £28k 07/10/13
Morecambe Town Hall (5) - - - - -
The Dukes Playhouse (6) - - - - -
Williamson Park (Intermediate) | 12/11/13 | 27/11/13 £90k £80k 02/12/13
(7)
Assembly Rooms (8) 14/11/13 | 28/11/13 £158k £100k 9/12/13
Storey Building (9) 26/11/13 | 24/12/13 £233k £323k 3/2/14
Maritime Museum (10) 25/04/14 | 12/05/14 £253k £328k 71714
Morecambe Intermediate General | 25/04/14 | 19/05/14 £100K £112k 717114
Projects; Morecambe Town Hall
& Garages (60 Euston Road,
Regent Road PC) Salt Ayre
Sports Centre (11)
Lancaster Intermediate General | 29/08/14 TBA £98K 131k TBA
Projects; Bridge End Depot,
Ryelands Changing Rooms, Old
Man’s Rest, Cottage Museum,
King George Playing Fields. (12)
Intermediate Demolition Projects | 24/11/14 TBA £50K TBA TBA
(Ryelands Park Pavilion) (13)
Totals £1.335M £1.306M

Notes:

AN AN AN N N N S N
ONO AP WN -
N N N N N N N N

The work is now 85% complete.
The work is now 100% complete and at Final Account Stage
The work is now 100% complete (outstanding retention & fees)
The work is now 100% complete (outstanding retention & fees)
Included within the Morecambe Intermediate Projects below
Project on hold as Dukes Theatre look to bid for development funding.
The work is now 100% complete (outstanding retention & fees)

The work is now 100% complete (outstanding retention & fees)




Page 64

(9) The work is now 95% complete, additional work to rebuild garden walls.

(10) The work is now 50% complete, additional boiler omitted from original
condition survey.

(11) The work is now 50% complete (additional work identified MTH re-plaster
walls main stairs, Euston Road new roof required, Stone Jetty external
works.

(12) Projects merged to gain savings with AMP’s submitted 7.10.2014
(13) AMP’s to be submitted 24.11.2014

2.1.3 Projects (P)

Total Total
Indicative | Approved | Proposed
Works Tender | Start Date
1% Year (AMP)

Submit | Approve
Property/Project Design Tender
ITender (AMP)

Williamson Park (1) 25/04/14 | TBA £383k TBA TBA
The Platform (2) 06/12/13 | 24/12/13 | £318k £413K | 03/03/14
City Museum (3) 25/04/14 | TBA £258k TBA TBA

Salt Ayre Sports Centre (4) - - - - -
Mitre House Car Park (5) 05/06/13 | 08/08/13 £60k £115k 30/09/13

Banqueting Suite Ceilings (6) 25/04/14 TBA TBA TBA TBA

£1.019M £528K

Notes:

(1) Project delayed due to approval of specification for Lancaster stone paving.
AMP to be submitted 24.11.2014.

(2) The work is now 95% complete, additional works to install new fall and arrest
system, maintenance staircase to flat roof and fire compartmentalisation
works to ground floor.

(3) To complete D repairs only AMP to be submitted 24.11.14.

(4) Now included within Morecambe Intermediate General Project.

(5) The work is now 100% complete, additional work to lay new sub-base to ramp
and car park.

(6) AMP to be submitted 24.11.2014 following full survey (project was not
identified in the original condition survey 2012).

2.2 Year Two (2014/15) Proposed Delivery Programme

A Cabinet report submitted on 29" July 2014 detailed the year two delivery plan
approach (see table below). As explained in the Quarter 1 report, the focus will be on
individual buildings rather than spreading our available resources too thinly over
numerous sites. The Cabinet Report explained the rationale behind the development
of the year two delivery programme which will be to select buildings with a secure
future and completed category A — C works.



Page 65

Once capital works have been completed on a particular building they will then be
transferred to the growing planned maintenance programme. The plan for the next 4
years is to complete the required work on the property portfolio, facilitating the move
from the current emphasis on an expensive reactive approach, to a more financially
sustainable planned maintenance ethos.

Submit | Approve Total Total
. - Indicative | Approved | Proposed
Property/Project Design Tender Work Tend Start Dat
[Tender | (AMP) s ender art bate
2" Year (AMP)
Maritime Museum & 26 St. Georges 27/10/14 | 19/12/14 £105K £151k 22/09/14
Quay (1)
The Storey - Building Works — Phase 2 | 24/11/14 | 19/12/14 £209K* TBA TBA
(2) (*includes £11k externally funded)
Lancaster Williamson Park - Phase 2 8/12/14 | 19/01/15 £250K TBA TBA
(3)
Ashton Memorial — Internal & External 10/11/14 | 12/12/14 £324K TBA TBA
Works (4)
Ashton Memorial — Paving Restoration 10/11/14 | 12/12/14 £260K TBA TBA
(5)
Ashton Memorial - Dome Ceiling 26/01/15 | 20/02/15 £100K TBA TBA
Restoration (6)
Lancaster Town Hall — Replacement 29/09/14 | 15/10/14 £133K £180K 02/02/15
Lift (7)
Lancaster Town Hall — Electrical & 11/11/14 | 11/12/14 £250K TBA TBA
Building Works (8)
Lancaster Town Hall — Banqueting 09/01/15 | 05/02/15 £100K TBA TBA
Ceilings (9)
Intermediate Demolition Contract - - £58K TBA TBA
(Palatine Recreation Ground) (10)
Salt Ayre Sports Centre (11) 02/03/15 | 27/03/15 £391K TBA TBA
Totals £2.180M £180K

(1) AMP Part submitted for boiler (extra work works missed on original Condition

Survey).

(2) AMP programme submission date 24/11/2014.
(3) AMP programme submission date 8/12/2014
(4) AMP programme submission date 10/11/2014.




Page 66

(5) Reported above as part of 1st year Wiliamson Park Project (P) - AMP
programme submission date 24/11/2014.

(6) AMP programme submission date 26/01/2015

(7) AMP approved above original estimate, lift ordered for a programmed start
date 02/02/2015.

) AMP programme submission date 11/11/14.

) AMP programme submission date 09/01/2015.

0) 1styear project reported as part of Intermediate Works (IW) Project.

1)  Only urgent works and Air conditioning units identified in year 2, building
appraisal to be conducted by SASC management for future use.

2.3 Overall Position

The total indicative value of works for year two is £2.180M and when added to the
Year 1 carry forward (1) of £1.360M and slippage (2) of £400K equals the approved
2014/15 Capital Programme of £3.940M.

A revised delivery programme has recently been arrived at forecasting the
completion of the year one carry forward and slippage of £1.760M and a further
£974K of year two totalling £2.734M, leaving a potential carry forward into Year 3
(2015/16) of £1.195M. This will be finalised, adjusted and reported during the budget
process.

Finally, it is worthy of note that the 2014/15 year two costs have been taken from the
2012 non-invasive condition survey and as such the possibility exists that unit costs
will increase due to inflationary pressures and identified works to certain components
will deteriorate further.

Notes:
(1) Carry Forward — relates to year one works that were identified at revised
budget setting as not being achievable before 31/03/2014.

(2) Slippage — relates to year one works which were anticipated for completion by
31/03/2014 but were subsequently not achieved.

3.0 Capital Receipts

There have been no further property related capital receipts to 30 September since
the last quarterly update (progress is anticipated in Quarter 3).



Page 67

4.0 Performance of Commercial Buildings (Occupancy)

As can be seen from the table below there have been some significant changes
since the closing position of the commercial property portfolio in the 2014/15 Quarter

4 update.

2013/14 2014/15 2014/15
Quarter 4 Quarter 1 Quarter 2
Number of Properties 61 60 60
Occupation by Floor Area
e Total Let (m2) 18,053 17,043 17,161
e Total Vacant (m2) 3,658 1,639 1,521
o Total Area (m2) 21,711 18,682 18,682

St. Leonard’s House has now been fully vacated by tenants and is now closed. The
Stage 2 report currently being prepared by the Lancashire Regeneration Property
Partnership (LRPP) is expected during November 2014. A cabinet report will follow
to determine the way forward based on the development proposals included in the
Stage 2 report.

The removal of St. Leonard’s House from these statistics along with some other
minor gains in current occupation across the City Council’s total commercial property
portfolio has resulted in the percentage let figure increasing from the 83% reported in
2013/14 Quarter 4 to 92% in the current quarter. The remaining 8% of vacant space
now amounts to the equivalent of 1521m2, the majority of which is attributable to the
following 2 buildings:

1. The Storey: The total commercial occupation within this building is currently
running at 71% which is an improvement on the figure of 59% reported last
quarter. The remaining 29% equates to a vacant floor area of 467m2 and
represents a reduction in vacant floor space of 184m2 over last quarter.

On the 6™ October new staffing arrangements were introduced at the Storey
to increase standard opening hours by improving both reception and facilities
support officer cover within the building. This has been achieved at minimal
cost largely through the reorganisation of existing resources to contribute to
the continuing operational and occupancy improvements at this site.

2. Citylab: The total commercial occupation within this building is currently also
running at 71% which is a modest improvement over the figure of 69%
reported last quarter. The remaining 29% equates to a vacant floor area of
376m2 and represents a reduction in vacant floors space of 21m2 over last
quarter.

Despite some good progress this quarter at both the Storey and Citylab the two
buildings still account for 55% of the total vacant commercial portfolio. Other
buildings currently contributing to the total vacant space include:

o Edward Street Dance Studio (159m2) — This building is vacant due to its




Page 68

inclusion in the Canal Corridor Development Agreement.

e Old Man’s Rest, Ryelands House (115m2) — A tenant has been secured but
has not taken occupation of the building at the time of writing.

o 56-58 Euston Road — Marketing of this building continues.

o Stone Jetty Café - A tenant has been secured but has not taken occupation of
the building at the time of writing.

¢ 8 Ridge Square — This is a Council Housing property that has been vacant for
some time.

Property Group continues to work towards reducing the vacancy rates in the
commercial property portfolio although considering that supply is currently
outstripping demand in the commercial office rental market, an overall 8% vacancy
rate across the whole portfolio represents a relatively healthy position.

There will undoubtedly be further updates during the remainder of the year; changes
are expected to have bearing on both occupancy and rental income. The latter will
be reflected in updating the budget.



Page 69

Appendix C

2014/15 Treasury Management Progress Report
11 November 2014 (Quarter 2)

Report of Chief Officer (Resources)

Introduction

The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management requires that regular monitoring
reports be presented to Members on treasury activities. These reports will normally be
presented after the end of June, September, December and March as part of the Council’s
performance management framework.

Council approved the 2014/15 Treasury Strategy, which incorporates the Investment
Strategy, at its meeting on 26 February 2014. This report outlines activities undertaken in
pursuance of those strategies during the financial year up to the end of Qtr 2.

Treasury management is a technical area. To assist with the understanding of this report, a
glossary of terms commonly used in Treasury Management is attached at Annex A. In
addition, the Councillor's Guide to Local Government Finance also has a section on treasury
and cash management and an updated Guide is now available through the Member
Information section on the Intranet.

Summary: Headline Messages

¢ Icelandic Investments — Only £77K still due from KSF, and £615K held in an
escrow account in respect of Glitnir.

e Borrowing Activities — no new borrowing has been undertaken during the
second quarter of the year, and no loans have been repaid.

¢ Investment Activities — investment interest is £7K ahead of target at the end
of the second quarter.

Economic update (provided by Capital Asset Services)

After strong UK GDP quarterly growth of 0.7%, 0.8% and 0.7% in quarters 2, 3 and 4
respectively in 2013, (2013 annual rate 2.7%), and 0.7% in Q1 and 0.9% in Q2 2014 (annual
rate 3.2% in Q2), it appears very likely that strong growth will continue through 2014 and into
2015 as forward surveys for the services and construction sectors, are very encouraging and
business investment is also strongly recovering. The manufacturing sector has also been
encouraging though the latest figures indicate a weakening in the future trend rate of growth.
However, for this recovery to become more balanced and sustainable in the longer term, the
recovery needs to move away from dependence on consumer expenditure and the housing
market to exporting, and particularly of manufactured goods, both of which need to
substantially improve on their recent lacklustre performance. This overall strong growth has
resulted in unemployment falling much faster through the initial threshold of 7%, set by the
Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) last August, before it said it would consider any increases
in Bank Rate. The MPC has, therefore, subsequently broadened its forward guidance by



Page 70

adopting five qualitative principles and looking at a much wider range of about eighteen
indicators in order to form a view on how much slack there is in the economy and how
quickly slack is being used up. The MPC is particularly concerned that the current squeeze
on the disposable incomes of consumers should be reversed by wage inflation rising back
above the level of inflation in order to ensure that the recovery will be sustainable. There
also needs to be a major improvement in labour productivity, which has languished at dismal
levels since 2008, to support increases in pay rates. Most economic forecasters are
expecting growth to peak in 2014 and then to ease off a little, though still remaining strong, in
2015 and 2016. Unemployment is therefore expected to keep on its downward trend and
this is likely to eventually feed through into a return to significant increases in pay rates at
some point during the next three years. However, just how much those future increases in
pay rates will counteract the depressive effect of increases in Bank Rate on consumer
confidence, the rate of growth in consumer expenditure and the buoyancy of the housing
market, are areas that will need to be kept under regular review.

Also encouraging has been the sharp fall in inflation (CPI), reaching 1.5% in July, the lowest
rate since 2009. Forward indications are that inflation is likely to fall further in 2014 to
possibly 1%. The return to strong growth has also helped lower forecasts for the increase in
Government debt by £73bn over the next five years, as announced in the Autumn Statement,
and by an additional £24bn, as announced in the March 2014 Budget - which also forecast a
return to a significant budget surplus, (of £5bn), in 2018-19. However, monthly public sector
deficit figures have disappointed so far this year.

In September, the U.S. Federal Reserve continued with its monthly $10bn reductions in
asset purchases, which started in December 2014. Asset purchases have now fallen from
$85bn to $15bn and are expected to stop in October 2014, providing strong economic growth
continues. First quarter GDP figures were depressed by exceptionally bad winter weather,
but quarter 2 rebounded strongly to 4.6%.

The Eurozone is facing an increasing threat from deflation. In September, the inflation rate
fell further, to reach 0.3%. However, this is an average for all EZ countries and includes
some countries with negative rates of inflation. Accordingly, the ECB did take some rather
limited action in June and September to loosen monetary policy in order to promote growth.

Borrowing Activities
No new borrowing was undertaken during Qtr 1. The following graph shows the PWLB rates
for the first half of this year.

5.00%

4.50%

4000 W

3.50% —~awemtegeme=tt oL S aki 7
- —
B L
e,z .
3.00%
- S A ""-— tome ——rptmas S
LY B B T L o g 2N 2 - e -
2.50% —tew.e - e e
2.00%
1.50%
1.00%
0.50%
0.00%
Ne n N > N N>
& @rs\ & N o o

1 ====4%5 =.=9%10 24%%-25 = In excess of 50



Page 71

Early Repayment of Debt

Officers continue to monitor potential saving opportunities associated with the early
repayment of existing debt. This takes into account the premiums or discounts associated
with early repayment and the projected cost of refinancing or loss in investment interest. At
present, it would not be financially prudent to repay any debt based on the current rates
being offered.

Investing Activities

As laid down in the approved Investment Strategy, the aim is to prioritise security and
liquidity of the Council’s investments. This is to ensure that the Council has sufficient cash to
support its business, but also to minimise any further chance of a counterparty failing and the
Council not being able to remove any cash deposited.

All investment activity has been in line with the approved Treasury Strategy for 2014/15. A
full list of the investments at the end of Qtr 2 is shown below (Table 6.1):

Table 6.1 Counterparty balances

Indicative Cumulative

Other Investments Opening Min Max Closing rate Interest
£ £ £ £ £

Call: RBS 0 0 0 0 0.25% 0
Call: Lancashire County Council 12,000,000 1,385,000 11,383,000 2,024,000 0.25% 7,078
Call: Svenska Handelsbanken 0 0 5,864,000 5,864,000 0.40% 9,863
DMADF 0 0 0 0 0.25% 0
Government Liquidity MMF 3,038,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.27% 7,001
Liquidity First MMF. 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.40% 11,765
Insight MMF 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.37% 10,701
Lloyds 3,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.60% 17,260
Sub-total 27,038,000 25,888,000 63,669

Below is a graph which displays the different investment products used by the Council. The
majority of the Council’s balances are held within instant access MMF’s or call accounts.
This is partly because there are prudential controls that ensure a certain percentage is
immediately available and also there is only a small pool of counterparties that meet the
Council’s credit criteria for fixed term deposits. Other UK banks, that meet the criteria such
as HSBC, require much larger investment and market themselves at much larger institutional
investors or corporations.

Graph 6.1 Investment balances
Investment 01/04/14 to 30/09/2014

£45,000,000

£40,000,000

£35,000,000

£30,000,000

£25,000,000

£20,000,000 -

£15,000,000 -

Cumulative Balance

£10,000,000

£5,000,000

£O
‘\. Q’\

Q’\\ %@hg‘ﬂb‘

MMF

Call Accounts

'L

gm Q%\ ol \g"'a

'E,

0"" GQ’ D‘\O %\()1

Date

B o
SIS

A2

B By B
Dgﬂ%gﬂﬁq,ﬂgq,\iggﬂ%g\@pgﬂ Dg'@rog

0PN e

g Fixed
i Iceland —

BB

()



Page 72

Summary of Budget Position and Performance
In terms of performance against external benchmarks, the return on investments compared
to the 7 day LIBID and bank rates over the year to date is as follows:

Base Rate 0.500%
7 day LIBID 0.358%
Lancaster City Council investments 0.380%

These rates do not take into consideration the funds held in a foreign bank account from an
Icelandic bank settlement. These funds are attracting interest at 4.2%.

In terms of performance against budget, the details are as follows:

Budget to | Actuals to Variance
Date Date
£000’s £000’s £000’s
| Icelandic Credits | 12 | 15 | (3)
| Cash Interest | 60 | 64 | (4)
| Total | 72 | 79 | (7)

Investment returns, excluding balances held in the Icelandic account, exceed the budgeted
level. This is due to cash balances being larger than expected as a result of delays within the
capital programme.

Risk management

There has been no material change in the policy or operation of the treasury function over
the quarter. However, officers are now looking at alternative investment matrices to
determine if investment returns could be increased whilst minimising the Council’s exposure
to additional risks. Secondly, as the cash flow need to keep investments short has
diminished, particularly in light of the latest settlement date on certain significant NNDR
appeals being pushed back to 2017, officers will now be firming up cash flow forecasts with a
view to placing longer term investments.

The funds being held in Iceland still expose the Council to exchange rate risks, but these are
unavoidable.

There is financial risk attached to the longer term debt portfolio, associated with interest rate
exposure but all of the debt is on fixed interest and there has been no change to this over the
quarter. Low investment returns mean that using cash invested to repay debt can appear
more attractive, but the Council is not yet in a clear enough position to be following such a
strategy.

Cash balances held with The Cooperative Bank continue to be monitored on a daily basis
following the banks crisis in relation to its funding gap. The bank falls short of the council
credit rating criteria and has not been on the approved lending list for some time.

Prudential Indicators

These indicators are prescribed by the Prudential Code to help demonstrate that the Council
can finance its debt and have funds available when needed. The prudential indicators are
listed in Annex B.

Conclusion
Investment activity has remained relatively unchanged and returns are expected to remain
fairly static until the final quarter of this financial year.



Page 73

Annex A
Treasury Management Glossary of Terms

Annuity — method of repaying a loan where the payment amount remains uniform throughout
the life of the loan, therefore the split varies such that the proportion of the payment relating to
the principal increases as the amount of interest decreases.

CIPFA - the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, is the professional body for
accountants working in Local Government and other public sector organisations, also the
standard setting organisation for Local Government Finance.

Call account — instant access deposit account.

Counterparty — an institution (e.g. a bank) with whom a borrowing or investment transaction is
made.

Credit Rating — is an opinion on the credit-worthiness of an institution, based on judgements
about the future status of that institution. It is based on any information available regarding the
institution: published results, Shareholders’ reports, reports from trading partners, and also an
analysis of the environment in which the institution operates (e.g. its home economy, and its
market sector). The main rating agencies are Fitch, Standard and Poor’s, and Moody’s. They
analyse credit worthiness under four headings:

e Short Term Rating — the perceived ability of the organisation to meet its obligations in
the short term, this will be based on measures of liquidity.

e Long Term Rating — the ability of the organisation to repay its debts in the long term,
based on opinions regarding future stability, e.g. its exposure to ‘risky’ markets.

¢ Individual/Financial Strength Rating — a measure of an institution’s soundness on a
stand-alone basis based on its structure, past performance and credit profile.

e Legal Support Rating — a view of the likelihood, in the case of a financial institution
failing, that its obligations would be met, in whole or part, by its shareholders, central
bank, or national government.

The rating agencies constantly monitor information received regarding financial institutions, and
will amend the credit ratings assigned as necessary.

DMADF and the DMO — The DMADF is the ‘Debt Management Account Deposit Facility’; this is
highly secure fixed term deposit account with the Debt Management Office (DMO), part of Her
Majesty’s Treasury.

EIP - Equal Instalments of Principal, a type of loan where each payment includes an equal
amount in respect of loan principal, therefore the interest due with each payment reduces as the
principal is eroded, and so the total amount reduces with each instalment.

Gilts — the name given to bonds issued by the U K Government. Gilts are issued bearing
interest at a specified rate, however they are then traded on the markets like shares and their
value rises or falls accordingly. The Yield on a gilt is the interest paid divided by the Market
Value of that gilt.

E.g. a 30 year gilt is issued in 1994 at £1, bearing interest of 8%. In 1999 the market value of
the gilt is £1.45. The yield on that gilt is calculated as 8%/1.45 = 5.5%.

See also PWLB.



Page 74

LIBID — The London Inter-Bank Bid Rate, the rate which banks would have to bid to borrow
funds from other banks for a given period. The official rate is published by the Bank of England
at 11am each day based on trades up to that time.

LIBOR — The London Inter-Bank Offer Rate, the rate at which banks with surplus funds are
offering to lend them to other banks, again published at 11am each day.

Liquidity — Relates to the amount of readily available or short term investment money which can
be used for either day to day or unforeseen expenses. For example Call Accounts allow instant
daily access to invested funds.

Maturity — Type of loan where only payments of interest are made during the life of the loan,
with the total amount of principal falling due at the end of the loan period.

Money Market Fund (MMF) — Type of investment where the Council purchases a share of a
cash fund that makes short term deposits with a broad range of high quality counterparties.
These are highly regulated in terms of average length of deposit and counterparty quality, to
ensure AAA rated status.

Policy and Strategy Documents — documents required by the CIPFA Code of Practice on
Treasury Management in Local Authorities. These set out the framework for treasury
management operations during the year.

Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) — a central government agency providing long and short
term loans to Local Authorities. Rates are set daily at a margin over the Gilt yield (see Gilts
above). Loans may be taken at fixed or variable rates and as Annuity, Maturity, or EIP loans
(see separate definitions) over periods of up to fifty years. Financing is also available from the
money markets, however because of its nature the PWLB is generally able to offer better terms.

Capita Asset Services — are the City Council’s Treasury Management advisors. They provide
advice on borrowing strategy, investment strategy, and vetting of investment counterparties, in
addition to ad hoc guidance throughout the year.

Yield — see Gilts

Members may also wish to make reference to The Councillor’s Guide to Local Government Finance.



Page 75

Annex B

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS - LANCASTER CITY COUNCIL

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
AFFORDABILITY
PI1: Estimates of ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream  Non - HRA 12.8% 12.4% 12.5% 12.8%
HRA 23.3% 22.5% 21.8% 20.9%
Overall 17.1% 16.6% 16.3% 16.2%
[ PI2:  Actual ratio of financing cost to net revenue stream Reported after each financial year end
Pl 3: Estimates of the incremental impact of new Capital Investment decisions on the
Council Tax -£6.70 £11.27 £3.48 £0.97
This includes the impact of all elements of funding, including any increase in o o o o
the need to borrow, required to finance new schemes added to the Capital -34% 5.6% 1.7% 0.5%
Programme
P1 3A: lllustrative Impact of Additional Borrowing £1 million Repayment Period
5Years 10 Years 25 Years
Increase in Council Tax (£) £4.86 £2.65 £1.47
Increase in Council Tax (%) 2.48% 1.35% 0.99%
Pl 4: Estimlates of the incremental impact of Capital Investment on Nil Nil Nil Nil
Housing Rents
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
P15: Estimates of capital expenditure Non - HRA 17.290 10.170 3.910 4.030
HRA 4.870 4.790 4.930 4.660
Total 22.160 14.960 8.840 8.690
[ PI6: Actual capital expenditure Reported after each financial year end |
P17: Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement Non - HRA 40,281 45,101 45,651 46,547
HRA 44,473 43,432 42,391 41,350
Total 84,754 88,533 88,042 87,897
[ PI8: Actual Capital Financing Requirement Reported after each financial year end |
EXTERNALDEBT
PI19: Authorised Limit
Authorised Limit for Borrowing 101 101 104 104
Authorised Limit for Other Long Term Liabilities 1 1 1 1
Authorised Limit for External Debt 102 102 105 105
P110: External Debt: Operational Boundary 85 88 88 88
[ PI11: Actual external debt Reported after each financial year end |
[ PI12: HRA limit on indebtedness 60,194 60,194 60,194 60,194]
PRUDENCE
. . . . The Council has adopted the updated Treasury
P113: Treasury Management: adoption of CIPFA code of Practice Management code of practice (2011).
Pl14: Net debt and the capital financing requirement
Anticipated indebtedness (operational boundary) 84,531 88,310 88,310 87,819
Anticipated investment 10,301 18,210 18,900 19,960
CFR 84,754 88,533 88,042 87,897
Under/over borrowed (-/+) -10,078 -17,987 -19,168 -19,882




Page 76 Agenda ltem 10

CABINET

Budget and Policy Framework Update 2015/16
02 December 2014

Report of Chief Officer (Resources)

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report provides an update on the Council’s financial position to help inform development
of Cabinet’s budget proposals.

EI Non-Key Decision ‘:I Referral from Officer EI
Date of notice of forthcoming 2 November 2014
key decision

This report is public.

OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. That Cabinet notes the draft budgetary position for current and future years
as set out in the report, accepting that this is an interim update.

2. That the update be referred on to December Council for information.

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report builds on the Quarter 2 financial monitoring included elsewhere on the
agenda, to provide a more up to date assessment of the Council’s budgetary
position in view of its financial strategy. Given that the Local Government
Settlement has not yet been received and other budgetary work is not yet scheduled
for completion, the report is an interim update only, primarily for information.

2 STRATEGIC CONTEXT

2.1  THE COUNCIL’S POLICY FRAMEWORK

2.1.1 Forits 2014/16 Corporate Plan, the City Council retained its priorities as:
— Economic Growth
— Health and Wellbeing

— Clean, Green and Safe Places, and
— Community Leadership



21.2

214

2.2

2.21

222

2.3

3.1

3.1.1

Page 77

These are now underpinned by an ethos aligned to being an Ensuring Council.

In Cabinet approving this year's budget timetable, it was acknowledged that the
focus of any budget and planning proposals would be to redefine and reduce
activities against existing priorities, rather than there being any fundamental
changes being developed. It has already been recognised that big financial
challenges still lie ahead and that the Council's contribution to each priority will be
significantly affected in future by reductions in Government funding. Furthermore,
the impact of other authorities’ (County, Fire & Police) and other stakeholders’
budget decisions are expected to have major direct implications for the district, with
knock on implications for the City Council and its own delivery of services.

To help tackle these financial challenges, as part of its Medium Term Financial
Strategy (MTFS) the Council continues to take savings decisions in year where
possible, and as a result the Strategy explicitly states that underspendings should
be expected to arise during the course of the year, in revising the current year’s
budget as well as at outturn. The budget update should be considered in this
context.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCE SETTLEMENT

The provisional Local Government Finance Settlement is not expected to be
announced until sometime after the Chancellor's Autumn Statement, which is
scheduled for 03 December. A briefing note will be produced for all Members once
the Settlement has been received and its impact assessed, subject to timing. In any
event, it will be reported formally into January’s Cabinet meeting.

The content of the Autumn Statement is expected to influence both the impact and
timing of the Settlement. As a recap:

— The MTFS approved back in February assumed that the Settlement Funding

Assessment (SFA) from Government would reduce by £1.7M or 16.0% in 2015/16
in cash terms, and by a further £0.5M (5%) the year after.

— The 2015/16 figure was a specific estimate as provided by Government; the

2016/17 figure was an Officer indicative estimate only, in the absence of any
firmer information.

— As a broad measure, every 1% change in Government funding amounts to

around £90K for 2015/16, or around 1.2% in city council tax terms.
The outcome of the Settlement could have a direct bearing, therefore, on the
Council’'s short and medium term planning and the scope or nature of its future
priorities.
GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET: SUMMARY
CURRENT YEAR POSITION
In support of the existing Corporate Plan, at Council on 26 February Members

approved the current year’s budget at £18.540M, excluding parish precepts, giving
rise to a council tax requirement of £7.6M. Since then, various changes have



3.1.2

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

Page 78

become apparent through monitoring and more significantly, numerous savings
measures have been taken in preparation for future years’ challenges.

To draw these together, an in-depth update of the current year budget has now
been completed, the results of which are included at Appendices A and B. Net
spending of £17.764M is now forecast, giving a projected net underspending of
£776K, prior to the review of provisions, reserves and Balances. The position is
explored further in section 5 of this report.

Taking account of the changes, Revenue Balances would stand at £4.031M as at 31
March 2015. This is £1.053M higher than expected back in February, but there is
still time for the revised budget position to change further over the coming weeks.

FUTURE YEARS’ FORECASTS
The first draft of next year’s budget has also been produced, in accordance with
Financial Regulations and the MTFS. Currently it stands at £17.066M for 2015/16,

as shown in Appendix A.

In the same vein, forecasts for 2016/17 and 2017/18 have also been updated. In
simple terms the outlook is as follows:

2015/16 2016/17 2018/18
£°000 £°000 £°000

Original Budget Limit 18,877 19,154 n/a
Less Original Forecast Use of Balances (1,000) -
Net Revenue Budget 17,877 19,154
Current Net Forecast 17,066 18,399 18,962
Reduction in forecast Net Spending (959) (755) n/a
Reduction in forecast Use of Balances 148 -- n/a

3.2.3

A number of key points are highlighted:

- Base budget changes in respect of pay, price and other economic conditions
have been provided for. Pay inflation is based on the recent national pay
proposals and estimated at 1% per year thereafter. General inflation is provided
for at 1.6% per year, but this was determined before the Bank of England’s
November Inflation report was received, and therefore general inflation factors
are likely to change again for reporting and fixing in January. The update on the
Council's fees and charges policy has been deferred, to allow for
reconsideration of inflation expectations.

- Whilst operational savings have been built in, the draft position does not include
any specific savings proposals that Cabinet may wish to consider, nor does it



3.24

3.2.5

4.1

4.2

4.3

Page 79

allow for any new growth options (or the continuation of previous fixed term
ones).

- New Homes Bonus income estimates have been updated, reaching a maximum
of £1.7M in 2017/18. For eligible properties, the bonus is paid for six years and
as the scheme started in 2011/12, from 2017/18 the early years’ allocations are
starting to drop out. At present, this is not impacting adversely on the Council’s
medium term planning but it is something to keep under review. It is not known
whether, or to what extent, the NHB scheme will remain as a permanent feature
or how its future might impact on other future Government funding streams.

- Capital financing costs have been updated to reflect the latest draft capital
programme, set out later in this report.

- At this stage the budget is based on previously approved use of Balances, i.e. a
one-off £1M contribution being used in 2015/16 but adjusted down by £148K to
balance off the budget, given the net savings that have been identified to date.

On a more specific matter, the Council has approximately £22K of grant remaining
in relation to mortgage rescue, or preventing homeowners from losing their homes.
Whilst this specific scheme has now finished, the budget provides for these funds
being used to extend the fixed term staffing resource for homelessness prevention
until the end of 2015/16; this is on the basis that the posts involved would deal
specifically with any homeowners facing repossession, as well as other
homelessness prevention work. The business case and means by which this
homelessness prevention capacity could be made permanent are also being
explored.

Undoubtedly the budget position will change further in the coming weeks and more
information will be fed into the January Cabinet meeting.

PROVISIONS, RESERVES AND BALANCES (GENERAL FUND)

Other than reviewing the Retained Business Rates Reserve and allowing for the
normal in-year application of funds, there has been no wider review of reserves and
provisions as yet.

In terms of Balances, as indicated above next year’s budget still allows for the use of
£852K. This use is reasonable and manageable in the circumstances, but it should
not be overlooked. Without it, the Council would have to identify more savings to
cover the funding gap.

It is also worth highlighting too that such reliance on the use of Balances is a
comparatively recent addition to the Council’s financial planning arrangements, the
approved principles being to:

— use some surplus Balances to help protect key services to the public for a
period;

— leave remaining Balances to help address the fundamental budget challenges
that are expected beyond 2015/16; and

— reduce the budgeted call on Balances if the Council makes extra savings.



4.4

5.1

5.1.1

5.1.2

514

5.2

5.2.1

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

Page 80

Taking account of the current year’s forecast underspending and next year’s usage,
this would leave £2.179M of Balances available, if advice on minimum levels
remains unchanged. These matters will be explored further in the coming weeks.

LOCAL TAXATION
Council Tax Rates and Targets

Alongside the Settlement announcement, Government is expected to confirm its
proposals regarding future council tax freeze compensation schemes and council
tax referendum thresholds.

Drawing on last year’s experience, a local referendum threshold of just below 2%
(1.99%) is still assumed, in line with existing MTFS targets. A 1% change in council
tax now amounts to around £77K.

Regarding the tax freeze compensation scheme, back in February Government
announced that compensation broadly equivalent to 1% would be available for
2015/16. Such compensation entitlement is to be built into the spending review
baseline, the inference being that authorities who freeze council tax will not see
such funding dropping out automatically in future. Nonetheless, there would still be
a net income gain of approaching 1% readily available to those councils that choose
to increase tax rates, unless the referendum threshold further reduces.

Once Government has made the relevant announcements, the various scenarios
will be presented to Cabinet in order that informed recommendations can be made
regarding future council tax rates and targets. This is scheduled for January
Cabinet.

Localised Council Tax Support (LCTS)

Following on from Council’s decision to retain existing support levels, the expected
financial impact from the scheme has continued to be monitored. Latest estimates
are that the cost of the scheme continues to fall slightly; in this year effectively a
projected cost of £9.8M has been allowed for. In future years, the impact is simply
expected to rise in line with council tax rates, i.e. a little under 2%. The outcome of
the scheduled national review should help to inform future policy on this matter.

Council Tax Collection

Council tax income (i.e. the amount collectable) continues to rise in year by more
than estimated. The increase is the net result of all the various changes that occur
in the tax base during the year, be they in relation to new homes being built, empty
properties coming back into use, changes in LCTS awarded from that budgeted, and
the myriad of other banding, discount and exemption changes that occur on a daily
basis. Furthermore, actual collection is holding up reasonably well.

These points result in the current estimated surplus of around £1M on the Collection
Fund, to be shared with other major precepting authorities. £130K would be due to
the City Council and this is reflected in the 2015/16 draft budget. Figures will be
finalised in January, in line with statutory requirements.



5.3.3

5.3.4

5.3.5

54

5.4.1

5.4.2

Page 81

Looking ahead for next year onwards, the council tax base projections have been
provisionally updated as follows:

— in 2015/16, the base has increased from 38,200 to 38,500, equating to £61,000
additional income;

— in 2016/17, the base has increased from 38,450 to 39,100, equating to £135,000
additional income;

— this trend has been factored into 2017/18 also.

It is impossible to forecast the tax base with absolute certainty and so risks will
always exist. Nonetheless, the exposure is considered manageable and in any
event, all indications are that housing needs will continue to grow.

On the downside, a bigger population increases the demand for council services.
As far as possible these have been considered in drafting the budget but this is not
an exact science and it will need to be kept under review.

Business Rates Income

Getting behind the Business Rate Retention Scheme continues to be a major
challenge for informing General Fund budget setting and financial strategy. The
Council’s hugely disproportionate exposure to rating appeals looks set to continue
into 2017 and probably beyond. Although options for more fundamental reform of
the system may be considered at some point, realistically the outcome would be a
matter for the longer term.

The completion of last year's accounts now gives certainty in terms of that year’s
position, however. This and other information has been used to update future years’
assumptions and budget projections. The following points should be noted:

o Of the £1.7M Business Rates Reserve opening balance for this year, around
£400K should be available to underpin the Council’s budget projections. The
remaining £1.3M is expected to be used to offset the Council’s share of the
Collection Fund (Business Rates) deficit existing as at the same date.

¢ In terms of the potential £2M growth (over and above the Council’s baseline
funding level) identified as part of Quarter 2 monitoring, this looks likely to
reduce to around £1.4M taking account of more recent information. It is clear
though that current year’s growth could continue to fluctuate and in any event it
will not be finalised until September 2015, when the final Government returns
are completed.

o In effect, there is a two-year delay between the year in which growth is
identified, and it being certain enough for it all to be built into the next budget
round (e.g. any 2014/15 actual growth in income will be available to help support
the 2016/17 budget).

¢ Assuming that the Council continues to experience a trend of increasing growth
in business rates, however, and as long as reserves can support the position, it
is reasonable to start budgeting for Business Rates income at the baseline,
rather than at the safety net. This helps the Council’s budget by almost £400K
per year, and it is now factored in from the current year onwards.



Page 82

¢ Risks around this new approach will be managed through the Business Rates
Reserve. The remaining £400K opening balance, and almost £400K of
additional income now recognised in the current year, have been retained in the
Reserve for this purpose.

5.4.3 All the above points will be tested further and there is a major caveat attached, in
that the forthcoming Settlement and associated Government returns due to be
received and completed in January could fundamentally change current
assumptions. It remains a very complex and uncertain situation.

6 VARIANCE ANALYSIS: WHY HAVE BUDGET PROJECTIONS CHANGED?
6.1 To draw informed conclusions about the robustness or otherwise of the Council’s
budgeting, it is necessary to understand more on the nature and reasoning behind

the variances, and to understand the comparators.

6.2 At the highest level, movements against the previously identified budget funding
gaps (or savings requirements) can be analysed simply as follows:

2015/16 2016/17
£000 £000

Reduction in Net Spending (allowing for Balances) (959) (755)
Estimated Collection Fund (Council Tax) Surplus (131) -
Forecast increase in Council Tax Base (in £ terms) (61) (135)
Total Savings Identified to date (1,151) (890)
Original Funding GAP / Estimated Savings Requirement 1,003 2,527
(MTFS, February 2014)
Difference: either
Reduction in call on Balances or 148
Updated Savings Requirement / Funding Gap 1,637

6.3 It can be seen that changes in council tax income have an effect, and these have
already been explained in section 5.3.

6.4 In terms of net spending, a fuller analysis is attached at Appendix B. The main
reasons for variance are considered to be:

— active management and development of the budget, in support of the Council’s
financial strategy;

— changes in demand for services, and price factors; and

— changes in the estimated timings of various initiatives and spend patterns.




6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

7.1

7.2

Page 83

It is pleasing to note that underspendings continue to arise from proactive savings
measures, as well as other budgetary changes. Making savings during the year is
an important and accepted element of the Council’'s approved financial strategy.

As in previous years, the salaries budget has again delivered the largest savings.
This is inevitable given the size of the budget (£20M) and the extent of change
ongoing. As an example and on top of planned restructurings, rather than fill all
vacancies immediately when turnover arises, typically services are considering
whether and how to address the reduction in staffing resource, and this often adds
to turnover savings.

Another angle to consider is the scale of any under- or overspending. Whilst it is
typically expressed as a percentage of the net revenue budget, this does not give a
full picture — not least because the Council’s gross budget (and therefore the scope
for variances arising) is much higher, at around £100M per year.

When compared against the gross budget position, underspendings appear much
lower in percentage terms — at less than 1%. In light of the Council’s financial
strategy and budgeting approach, this is considered good performance.

Nonetheless, it is important that the Council challenges its budget setting approach
to ensure that it remains fit for purpose, and to identify any further scope for
improvement. For instance:

¢ Does the Council’'s approach to budgeting cause any undue adverse impact on
service delivery, to warrant any major changes in the approach?

o Are there any significant variances that could have (and should have) been
foreseen and allowed for in setting the budget?

Chief Officers are considering such questions, as services develop their business
plans. Other than undertaking a further review of vacant posts and turnover
provisions, no major improvements or changes put forward by Officers at this time.
Also, more minor improvements are achieved through the usual budget review
processes. Cabinet is requested to consider its views on this.

BALANCING THE BUDGET AND LONGER TERM EXPECTATIONS

Given that the Settlement announcement is imminent, at this stage there is little
point in modelling any alternative scenarios for next year or thereafter. From this
budget update, it is clear that attention must focus predominantly on 2016/17 and
beyond but it is unknown to what extent this period will be covered by the
Government’s forthcoming announcements, if at all.

There is another significant cautionary note also. The recently announced public
consultation on the County Council’'s budget proposals helps to highlight the issue,
and perhaps it helps make the expectation of future budget setting difficulties more
real. Just drawing on one such budget proposal, the end of the cost-sharing
agreement in connection with waste management will add around £1.1M to the City
Council’'s own funding gap in 2018/19, which is currently just beyond the Council’s
current revenue planning horizon. Although really good progress continues to be
made in balancing the budget for the short term, fundamentally the expected impact



Page 84

of medium to longer term austerity measures has not gone away. Work continues
therefore on developing an organisational development / change programme, for
consideration by Members in due course.

8 GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME

8.1  Alongside updating revenue expectations, the capital programme has been updated
for known changes to date as well as being rolled forward a year into 2019/20.
Gross capital investment of £36.8M is currently forecast over the period, resulting in
an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (or underlying need to borrow) of
£14.5M. This is now £2.4M higher, predominantly as a result of asset renewals.

8.2 In line with the practice adopted a year ago, vehicle, plant and equipment
acquisitions are now assumed to be financed as outright purchase, rather than by
operating lease, hence this represents the bulk of essential investment. It is still
expected that from 2017 or so, all lease arrangements will need to be treated as
capital or “on balance sheet”. Nonetheless, in the meantime options appraisal will
continue as appropriate under delegated authority, with revenue and capital budgets
being updated accordingly following decision.

8.3 £159K is now included to meet old contractual liabilities in respect of West End
properties, to be financed from the Capital Support Reserve in line with its delegated
use. This is listed in the programme as Adactus Top Up Grants.

8.4 A full capital programme summary is included at Appendix C, and the movements
to date are summarised below.

Gross Change_ in
P Underlying
rogramme .
Borrowing
Need: CFR
£000 £000
Original Approved 5 Year Programme (to 2017/18, 21,568 +12,106
excluding last year)
Key Changes:
Wave Reflection Wall (Cabinet April 2014, minute 103) 9,097 -
Approved Slippage (Cabinet July 2014, minute 28) 1,706 +698
Quarter 2 Monitoring: Officer Delegated Changes 50 -
Affordable Housing Related Schemes (S106 and officer delegation) 239 -
Vehicle, Plant and Equipment Renewal Updates (provisional) 3,374 +3,166
2019/20 Assumed Extension of Disabled Facilities Grants 783 -
Other Net Changes in Externally Funded Schemes -33 -
Additions / Increases in Other Council Funded Schemes 93 -
Net Increase in Forecast Capital Receipts (used to reduce - -1,421
borrowing need)
Total Changes 15,309 +2,443
Resulting Draft 6 Year Capital Programme (to 2019/20) 36,877 +14,549




8.5

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

Page 85

As stated each year, all of the Council’'s capital investment plans need to be
affordable, sustainable and prudent, and capital investment is intrinsically linked to
the revenue budget. As such, the draft programme will continue to be updated
during January and February as Cabinet’s budget proposals develop.

COUNCIL HOUSING (HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT- HRA)

As reflected in the MTFS, Cabinet’s current rent policy for council housing is based
on:

— an average rent of £69.91 for 2014/15, representing a 1% increase on the
previous year;
— target average rent increases of 2% in 2015/16, with 3% each year thereafter.

The aim of this policy is to strike a balance between keeping rents affordable,
managing financial risks, and increasing and improving council housing provision.
For information a 1% change in rent equates to around £135K.

As part of the current budget process both revenue and capital estimates have been
updated, reflecting the above rent policy. The latest draft position is as follows:

2014/15 | 2015/16 | 2016/17 2017/18
£000 £000 £000 £000
Draft Housing Revenue Account
(Surplus) for Year (41.0) (41.6) (489.2) (773.4)

The latest projections represent a net overspending of £32K in the current year,
when compared with the original projected surplus of £73K, and at present this has
simply been met from Balances. For information, the current recommended
minimum level for HRA balances is still £350K, subject to formal review.

Cabinet may recall that the 30-year business plan currently works on the basis that
monies will be set aside in the earlier years, to offset higher costs in the latter years.
This principle accounts for the large surpluses showing in 2016/17 and beyond.

The biggest issue that has been tackled in the budget review so far is that of
budgeting for responsive repair and maintenance costs. This budget has been
increased by over £400K per year, financed through reducing the annual
contributions to some equipment reserves, and reducing revenue financing for the
capital programme. This is considered manageable in the medium term at least.

The HRA capital programme has been updated as normal to reflect business plan
needs and price changes, but these are fairly minor. More significant changes will
come through in due course to reflect the outcome of the recent stock condition
survey, but the timescales for completing this work are not yet finalised.
Furthermore, the programme does not yet include provision for delivering new
council housing within the district.

With regard to future rent policy, back in October Cabinet resolved that a review be
undertaken to ensure that it is fit for purpose going forward, in light of Cabinet’s

10



Page 86

stock expansion plans as well as existing business planning needs. Provisionally it
is assumed that will be a matter for the 2016/17 budget, as by then plans should be
clearer.

9.9 Of more immediate concern, full HRA budget proposals for 2015/16 will be
presented to Cabinet in the New Year.

10 DETAILS OF CONSULTATION

10.1  Consultation on General Fund matters will be undertaken with relevant stakeholders
through the Budget and Performance Panel meeting in January, prior to Budget
Council in early March. Consultation on council housing matters will be undertaken
through the District Wide Tenants’ Forum. This is in line with the Council’s
consultation strategy.

11 OPTIONS AND OPTIONS ANALYSIS (INCLUDING RISK ASSESSMENT)

11.1  Given that this report is primarily for information, no specific options are put forward.

12 CONCLUSION

12.1 The Council is making really good progress in delivering budget savings in a
constantly changing and difficult environment, whilst trying to minimise the impact on
local communities. It is right to challenge the approach and robustness of budget
setting, but it also right to recognise the efforts and achievements of all those
involved.

12.2 Those achievements have still not negated the reliance on using Balances to help
support next year's General Fund budget, however, and this is not sustainable for
the longer term. It is hoped, but by no means guaranteed, that forthcoming
Government announcements will give greater certainty in terms of the Council’s
financial outlook — but in any event the medium to longer term budget challenges
are still expected to be huge, even allowing for the Council’'s healthy levels of
reserves and balances.

12.3 Finally, an important part of those future challenges will be to manage communities’
expectations, and it is thought that as other public services providers’ budget
reductions start to bite, this will gain momentum.

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK
The budget should represent, in financial terms, what the Council is seeking to achieve
through its Policy Framework.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT

(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability etc)
None directly arising in terms of the corporate nature of this report — any implications would
be as a result of specific decisions on budget proposals affecting service delivery, etc.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
As set out in the report.

11



Page 87

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS
The section 151 Officer (as Chief Officer (Resources)) has produced this report as part of
her responsibilities.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Legal Services have been consulted and have no observations to make on the report.

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Nadine Muschamp
None. Background information has ||| Telephone: 01524 582117

previously been published as part of earlier j| E-mail:nmuschamp@lancaster.gov.uk
committee reports, as appropriate.

12



Page 88 Appendix A

GENERAL FUND REVENUE BUDGET : 2014/15 TO 2017/18
For Consideration by Cabinet 02 December 2014

| i e |

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
£000 £000 £000 £000
Original Revenue Budget & Projections
Changes arising from current budget review process -776 -959 -755 18,823
Additional Contribution to Balances 776
Reduction in Original £1M Contribution from Balances 148
Latest Net Revenue Budget Forecast 18,540 17,066 18,399 18,823
Revenue Support Grant -5,700 -3,832 -3,273 -2,733
Retained Business Rates - Baseline Funding Level -5,110 -5,250 -5,355 -5,462
Estimated Collection Fund Surplus -131 -131 0 0
COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENT 7,599 7,853 9,771 10,628
TARGET COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENT
(To fit with a council tax increase of 1.99% per year) 7,599 7,853 8,134 8,423

Remaining Savings To Be Identified

Tax Base Projections 38,000 38,500 39,100 39,700
Band D City Council Tax Rate - MTFS Targets £199.99 £203.97 £208.03 £212.17
Percentage Increase Year on Year 1.99% 1.99% 1.99% 1.99%
Current Council Tax Projections £199.99 £203.97 £249.89 £267.72
Percentage Increase Year on Year 1.99% 1.99% 22.51% 7.13%

e General Fund UnallocatedBalances .|

£M

£2.179M Original projected balance as at 31 March 2014 3.436

Add: 2013/14 underspend 0277

Less: Budgeted Contribution for 2014/15 -0.458

Add: Current Projected Underspend 0.776

Latest Projected Balance as at 31 March 2015 4.031

M Current M - Less: Current Minimum Level ~ 1.000
M Contribution to 2015/16 Budget Less: Revised Contribution for 2015/16 0.852
B Available to Support Future Years' Budgets Amount Available to Support Future Years’ Budgets 2179




Page 89

Appendix B

%L
Sulwuiy

%8

%EL aAnoeo.d

9A10e04d
%S
Sulwny
91/S10¢ ST/v10¢
000°z0z- %€ 0- dWOoJU| $S0I9H %¥°0- |009°LLE- awioou| jeuonippy v
Aq wds
000°LG .- %8 °0- ainjipusdxy s$soi9 %¥'0- |00¥ 8S¥- sbuines ainjipusdxy
000'656- | %r'G- jebpng enuensy joN  %Z'v- [000°9L.L- S3IONVIYVA 13N V10l
Jo abejusaiad e se passaidxg
STONVINVA STONVINVA
7 k4
91/510¢ SLivi0c

sBuipuadsiapuf }9N / S9duUeLIeA pun4 |[e13udr) JO SisAjeuy

¥10Z Jaquada z0 1auige) Ag uoneispisuo) Jo4
SISATIVNY dONVIAVA ANN4d TVHINTD




Page 90

00Z°LL- 008°0¥

aswweuboud jeydeod ¢ 1/e 10z 8y} uo abeddis o) sejeja. G L/ L0Z Ul }S09 jeuonippy 00Z°€- 000‘€E awwelboud jeuded jo Buoueuly anuanal Joa.Ig
anuana. o} pabieyo . o
$}S00 Bujoueuly ssaj ul bunnsai G L/yL0Z Ul spdiedal [eydes jeuonippe o} enp Ajuiepy 009°6¢ 006¢6 Buroueuy B3deo j0 3500 SnuaASY
sejyoid . .
buisesy ul sebueyo - ¢ 1/¢ L0z Ul epew sbuires Aq }8SY0 SI G L/ L0 Ul 8seaoul ay | 008'Lc 00108 $1800 BUISES| SIYSA [EUORIPPY
suspIeL) YLOMSIeyD i 91/GL0Z Ul pawnsse mou sbuires 001'G/.- 00902 s1s00 Auadold pu3 1sepn
sabueys bujwiy
008‘L¥e- 00€ ‘01~
00Z'zy- 00v've- sabuey) oyloads-uoN Joyo
Jos sem jabpnq Joye apel UoISIo8p Joquidyy 000°0% (@1g) ansasas 0} uonNQLIUOD dVVIN
pasea.oul sey soueud)UIRW 9 Jledal 8]o1ydA JO }S0D ‘UINJNO t1/SL0Z Yim aull ul 00L'G9 000°‘€9 aoueusjuUlew ¥ Jiedas a|oIYs A
J10 jo eaud ayj uy uoonpel 8yy speyey 00G V.- 00.°69- SJS00 [ony paonpey
Joyddns usjem ay) Aq paire| sebieyo Jojem aoeLns jeuonippy 00001 000°L 1 yied uoswel||ip - sabiey) Jarepn
Juswebeuew aApoe ybnoiy) pessiyoe ussaq ey Jim Buines ayj jo juswsle uy 00L‘Gl 00201 s1s09) ABisug
$JSB028.0J 9jkl JSald)ul parcidwi 9 seoueleq ysed pajedionue uey; jaybiH 00L'€ZL- 00L°LG- }seJaju| JuswisoAu|
usALIp puewap j[e oq o} pawnssy 006°Q.- 00€‘9YL- S92IAISS ||B ssoioe sabieyd pue sea4
SPO8U S9INISS MBIASI O] "B} JO pOLIad € Joj JuEoen 006°E€L- 001981~ uoissalboud [ejuswaioul ‘pleme Aed ‘leAouiny 1N

sjsod buidesy Ajejeiaqiiep ‘b8 ‘sbuines psbeuew Jo Juswajd ue apnjoul osle [[IM Siy |

(930 sabueys puewop ‘sjuars usssaiojun) sebueyn aAl)oeay

000°00.- 00SCLy-

sjpuswaJinbaJ buipuny pue uonisod sejey ssauisng Jo juswissasseay 00/°/8€- 009 aAIBSal Sa)eyY ssauisng
SJS09 Jo Juswsbeuew anoe0I4 00G 82 00z‘Lz- jonuo) [enua)d YyH Buipuny jo 1s00 paonpay
SJS09 Jo Juswsbeuew anoe0I4d 00E'GE- 006°G- S90Ud9I| JY}0 pue 8I1em}os
(puewap Aq pejosye sjusweje swos ybnoyje) sjsoa Jo Juswebeuew aAoe0Ild 001 ‘82 000°LG- S99} |euIalxd xR Aoueynsuo)
¥10Z g8+ Gz U0 UoISIoap 89130 [auuosiad buimojjos 3309 paonpay 00 0 00v'6E- sBuines aouemojje Je)
sbuines Jeussjul wouj papuny buieq S}S09 - UOHNQLIUOD o) peau paonpay 00/,'6L- ooL‘s ansesal diyseonuaiddy
SO0INIBS [RjuBWIUOIIAUT AQ pabeuew mou sajolyaA jodyed syed jo uoisiroid ur sbueyd 000°E- 00S°0¢- paiinbal 1abuo| ou aAIBsBl SHIEd 0O} UOKNGLIIUOD
$8IpPOQ 18YJ0 J0J YIOM JO UORENUUOD 000CL- 3}IOM 88} JIpny [euIdlU|
LL/0LOC canT -
Ul yoeq epelw ‘ewoou] 8jSe) epel] Uo WIed | YA [njSseoons o} buiejal punjaJ jo-auQ 00¢801 PUNaL LVA
"MZzeF pejebpngq [euibLo ayy eroge pue ieAo parsiyoe sbuires jeuonippy 00€‘L91- 000'8¥1- SWIBAQ / S1S0d palg[eQ / seinjoniisey

(930 ‘sBuines pabeueyy) sabueyd aAlpoeoid

SIN3ININOD 91/510¢ SLivioc :sodueLIeA 10} si1aAuq Aoy




C 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (-) sSN1d¥NS / 1TV4LHOHS
X
Im 000°228'9¢ 000'S2L'S 000°28L° 000969t 000°28L'S 000'SS2‘L 000°229°0L ONIONVNIH V101
c (poaN Buimotiog
O 000°6Y5'vL 000'894°Z 000212 000161} 000°119°C 000°€40'y 000'7ZE‘y 1 aBuey9 Buikepun) (¥49) Juswaiinbay
o Buioueul4 jexde9 ui (-) uorponpay / aseasosu|
p 000'82€°2C 000°2SS‘E 000°625°C 000°S05°€ 000°9LL° 000°Z12'¢ 000°€0€‘9
A 000°266°L 00078 000°0LL 000°0L2 000V 00090 000°€L0‘L SOAIBSRY paxyiewIey
00000 0 0 000°0S 000701 000°LS 00056 Buipung anuaasy a1
000'8Yv'e 0 0 000°0L€ 000°02€ 000°0€9 000820 sidisoay |eyden
000°2¢ 0 0 0 0 0 000°2€ spuel9 [eyde) [e10U9D
00098191 000°€LY'E 000'50v'Z 000'528°C 000829 000's2L'Z 000089 suoRNQLIUOY pue sjuelo dyeds
: Buloueuly
000°169°0Z (000°98L°9L |000°228°9E (000252 |000°€L¥'E |000°GZL'G [000°Z8€  |000°SO¥‘Z |000°28.C |000°LZ8°L (000'G/8‘C (000°969‘% 000°6SL‘€ |000°829°Z |000°28L‘S |0000EL'S |000°SZL'Z |000°SSC L 000°2¥6°L |000°089°C |000°229°0L FNNVYO0YUd TVLIdVI ANNL TVHINID
000°0€6°2L [000°0L 000°0¥6°L 0 0 0 000°000°2 000°000°Z (000°S6L°E 000°S6L°S 000'S€L°Z (00001 000°SL'2 S0 AWadold sjesodion
000'792°L |0 000'v92°L 000'v8 00078 000922 00092z  |000°0LZ 000°0L2 00092 00092 000'v8€ 000'v8€ 000782 000'v8Z jJuswdinb3 g aunjonuselu| ‘swalshs 19)
$921N0SY
000'828°L |0 000'828°L 0 0 0 0 0 000828} 000°828°L susples yuomsjeyD
000°16€ 0 000°16€ 0 (1] (1] 0 (1] 000°L6€ 000°L6E SYIOAN 9)IS uonessusbay BuisnoH 19a.1S plog
000°6S L 0 000651 0 0 0 0 0 000651 000651 sjuein) dn do) snjoepy
000°2€ 0 000°2€ 0 0 0 000'% 000y 000°ZL 000°LL 000°LL 000°L1 aWaYdg 90| S dAI8saY aIneN UOo8|PPIN
000°081 0 000°081 0 0 0 0 0 000°08L 000°081 awayos 90 s BuisnoH a|qep.oyy doesa | uoibul@pAS Bury
000°ZEL 0 000°2€L 0 0 0 0 0 000°2EL 000°2EL Bawayos 90 |s BUISNOH B|qEPIOYY [9ISOH MBIASIOAIY
000°08 0 00008 0 0 0 0 0 00008 000°08 awayos 90| s BuisnoH a|qeployy aso|) a|puug
00002 0 000°02 0 0 0 0 0 000°02 000°0Z oWayos 90 LS sjuawanoldw] SS90y apIS [eueD peoy aPIoplY
000051 0 00005 0 0 0 0 000°0€€ 000°0€E 000°‘0ZL 000021 S}ea.)S UIBI S,2qWiesalop Buirosdw|
000°622 000'.¥8 (000221} 0 0 0 000°€S 000'99L  [000‘6LZ  [0008LL  |000'€SE  |000°LLY 000'70L  [000'82E  |000°ZER 213 IO} MBIA V/ :ZIHL SGWIEO8Io)
0ga=20€ 000°0L0°L |000°ZLEL 0 0 0 0 0 000°20€  [000°0L0‘}L |000°ZLE‘L sejnoy aienbg Jejseoue
é.wu 0 000's2 0 0 0 0 0 000's2 0002 jseg apisaun
00082 000° 000°L€ 0 0 0 0 0 00082 000'€ 000°LE (epeuswold aquedalo}y) sjuswanoiduwi Ajuswy
ofdds.  looozse's fooo'ess's  |000'sz 000069 |000°bL2Z [000°0E  (000'2Z9°t [000°259°L |0000E  |000°260° |000°2ZLz  |000°0E  |000°6.9°L (000'602°b [000°LE  [000°686  |000°020°L  |000GL  |000'0LE  [000°SZE S3IPNIS 3 SHION B0UBJEQ JOA B BOS
0 0 00082 0 0 0 0 00082 00082 0 (lemauay) s)ybi] sewsly) alenbg uojeq
0 3 0 000°€L 0 0 (1] 0 (1] 000°€l 000°€L 19018 Bury - Buissoi) ueono |
o Buluueld pue uonjesauabay
000°0€ 0 000°0¢ 0 0 0 0 000°0¢ 000°0E 0 sjuawysiqinjay 1 syuswaoe|day - a)ua) spods alAy Jes
000°L€ 0 000°2€ 0 0 0 0 0 000°2€ 000°2€ SWBYOS SOWOH JaWIep
0 000'v8.'v |000'V8LY 0 000'€8.  |000‘€8L 0 000'€8L 000°€8L 0 000'€8. |000‘€8L 0 000'€8L 000°€8L 0 000'€8.  |000°€8L 0 000'698 000'698 (pawiyuoo 8q 0} spiemuo 91/5102) S)ueID SaN|ved pajqesia
BuISnoH pue yjjesH
000°SL [1} 000'S.L 0 0 0 0 000°S2 000°SL 0 sjuswaoueyuT p sjuswanoldul sed uosw
0 000'sZL 000's2h 0 0 0 0 0 0 000'6ZL  |000‘SZL syuawanoidwi| punoibheld ousiq
000°G61 000'SZ 000°02S 0 0 0 0 000°GEL 000°SEL 000°09€  |000'GZ 000°68€ swweibo.d Juswanoidw) syied Jed
000°92} 0 000'921 0 0 0 0 0 000°92} 000°9Z1 SHIOM 191101
000°2G1 0 000°251 0 0 000°0S 000°0S 000'v2 000V 000°12 000°12 00021 0002 sInO-Ang pajnpayos sexog R suig
000'S0L 0 000'S0L 0 0 0 0 0 000°S0L 000°S01L waysAg Bupjoel] S|oIyBA
000°0629 |0 000°062‘9 000°L¥L'2 000°.¥L'Z |000°9ZL 000'9ZL  |000°LES‘L 000°LES‘L 000226 000226  |000°99L 000°99. 00086 000°86L slemausy dJIIYSA
000°22 0 00022 0 0 0 0 0 000°22 000°22 sjuswio|y
3 3 3 3 3 3 E 3 3 3 3 3 E 3 3 3 3 3 E 3 3 S3DIAIDS [ejuswIuoIIAUg
ol 3 v -l ) 'l ) ) ) swsYyodg / 8JIAleg
3 o I8 3 2 o o 5} o 5} o
Q= S5m e 2 Q - |Bupung| j8bpng Q - (Buipung| jebpng Q - |Buipungy| jebpng Q - |Bupung| jebpng Q > |[Buipung| jebpng Q - |[Buipung| 3abpng
5z m.. w 5@ 2 |jewepa| ssoip £ 2 |jpuwepxa| ssoip S 2 |jewepa| ssoin S 2 |jewexg| ssoin S 2 |lewepa| ssoip S 2 |jpwepxa| ssoin
32 @3 30 3 3 3 3 3 3
o s o0 o @ o @ o @
FNNVHOOUd HV3IA 9 0c/6102 6L/8L0C 8L/L1L0C L1/9102 9115102 SLivioe

¥10Z Joquiadaq g0 Jaulqe) Aq uonelapisuod Jod - JNINVID0YUd TV.LIdVI ANNL TVHINID



Page 92 Agenda ltem 12

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 98

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



	Agenda
	6 Charter Market Review
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D

	7 Storey - Tasting Garden
	storey update report appendix
	StoreytastinggardenappB

	8 Smokefree Play Areas - Introduction of a Voluntary Code
	9 Corporate Performance Monitoring 2014/15
	App A Corporate Financial Monitoring Qtr2.docx
	Annex A GF Variances.pdf
	Annex B GF Capital Monitoring
	App B Property Group 2014-15 Q2.doc
	App C TM Progress Qtr2 Final.doc

	10 Budget and Policy Framework Update 2015/16
	App A GF Revenue Budget Forecast.pdf
	App B GF Variance Analysis.pdf
	App C GF Revised Capital programme.pdf

	12 Sites off Bailrigg Lane, Scotforth, Lancaster
	Cabinet Plan - Bailrigg Lane.pdf


